Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
X B 1T HE R D A
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(RERETSMRZLZERAF)
(Stock Code B 13X3% : 1047)

\

ANNUAL REPORT & E # &

2016/2017







8-15

16-28

29-40

41-48

49

50

Contents
BHE%

Corporate Information
ATEH

Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management

ESREETEASERE

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Report of the Directors
ExERE

Corporate Governance Report
EEELRRE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B RBATR &

Consolidated Income Statement

FEWER

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

FEEHER

51-52

53-54

55-56

57-174

175

176-177

178-180

Consolidated Balance Sheet
GEEEBER

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
GAERBER

Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

GEHERER

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

FEMBRMRME

Five-Year Financial Summary

AFPRBEHRE

Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYER

Company Directory
ATEE



Corporate Information
ATIEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

LIU Sau Lai

NG Chi Ming

HUI Yan Kuen (Appointed on /st January 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
HO Wai Chi, Paul

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Ka Ho

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung
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HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
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CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung
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HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
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OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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10 Wo Shing Street
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New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS (IN BERMUDA)
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRARS (IN HONG KONG)

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1047

WEBSITE
http://www.nhh.com.hk
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEBEASERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 70, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He is
responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business
strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has

more than 47 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 68, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a co-
founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and administration of
the Group. He has more than 47 years' experience in the plastics industry and he was
awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 61, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is in
charge of the R&D centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong
was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems
Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D
degree in Chemical Engineering and is also a Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a
corporate member of The Institution of Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked for two multinational chemical companies

prior to taking up a lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 59, is responsible for credit control of the Group. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She
joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Directors. She has more than 32 years' experience in plastic materials trading.

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 52, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department, Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group and the
General Manager (Acting) of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He is responsible
for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology and key accounts in the
Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He also holds a
Master of Engineering Management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He
joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has

over 28 years' experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding technigues.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr HUI Yan Kuen, aged 40, is the Southern China General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Ltd. and is responsible for sales and marketing of plastic materials in Hong Kong and
other cities in Southern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Civil Engineering from
Queen’s University, Ontario, Canada and also holds a Master degree of Business and
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He joined
the Group in 2004 and has over |2 years' experience in business management, sales &
marketing. Mr HUI Yan Kuen is the son of Mr HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr HUI Yan Kit and Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (both are

the senior management of the subsidiaries of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 66, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences
and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 67, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic Material Ltd.
He has more than 40 years' experience in plastic trading. He was formerly a lecturer of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic University. He is now the Honorary
Lifetime Chairman of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers Association, President of Hong
Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Honorary Chairman of The Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of Hong Kong Plastics Technology
Centre and Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Brands Protection Alliance. He has also

been awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service.

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 47, is a financial consultant. He has more than 25 years
of experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting. Mr Ching had been the
executive director, finance director, company secretary and qualified accountant of the
Company. He also worked as the chief financial officer and company secretary of a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He obtained a Bachelor's
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and an
Executive Master degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and
2006, respectively. Mr Ching is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a

member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEBEASERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, aged 62, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, and is responsible for the
overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ng holds a
Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director of the
above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 36 years' experience in
plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ng has held several key positions
in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and product

marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, aged 46, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing in the
Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from The University
of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the University of
South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 23 years” experience in sales

& marketing.

Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 44, is the Chief Financial officer and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of Hong
Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (‘FCCA") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“FCPA™). He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder
("CFA") and a Certified Financial Risk Manager (“FRM"). He has over 2| years' experience
in auditing, finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury, information

technology, administration and human resources management of the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr HUI Yan Kit, aged 44, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Materials
Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and
Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai and other cities in Eastern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from University of Toronto. He joined the
Group in 1998 and has over 19 years' experience in business management, sales &
marketing. Mr HUI Yan Kit is the son of Mr HUI Sai Chung and the brother of Mr HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr HUI Yan Kuen.

Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 43, is the General Manager of Dongguan Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible for sales and
marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in
Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern China. He holds a Bachelor degree
with honors in Arts (Major in Economics) from Queen'’s University, Ontario, Canada. He
joined the Group in 2004 and has over |17 years' experience in business management,
sales & marketing. Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr HUI Sai Chung and the
brother of MrHUI Yan Kit and Mr HUI Yan Kuen.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (“the
Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 30th June
2017. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of HK$1,580,329,000
(2016: HK$1,506,063,000) and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$34,430,000 (2016: loss of HK$26,492,000). Earnings per share for the year were
HK9.33 cents (2016: loss per share of HK7.18 cents). The Board of Directors recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents (2016: Nil) per share. Together with the
interim dividend of HK1.0 cent (2016: Nil) per share, the total dividend payment for the
year under review is HK3.0 cents per share (2016: Nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the past year, international political and economic risks have remained as major
concerns. However, the moderate recovery witnessed in the global economy, the steady
economic growth in China along with the stable exchange rate of the Renminbi, the
gradual rise of crude oil prices from last year's low level and the more balanced demand
and supply situation in the global oil market all had a positive impact on the Group's
business development. For the year ended 30th June 2017, the Group's total turnover
was HK$1,580,329,000 (2016: HK$1,506,063,000), representing a year-on-year growth of
4.9%.

With its proven operating strategy of developing and selling higher margin products,
carefully selecting customers as well as capturing the opportunities arising from increasing
market demand, the Group reported an improved overall business performance with
higher product sales and selling prices. Gross profit grew by 16% to HK$217,524,000 (2016:
HK$187,550,000), while gross profit margin increased from 12.5% to 13.8%. Meanwhile,
the Group managed to turn around its core businesses in the year by implementing strict
cost control measures in order to lower administrative and distribution expenses as well
as borrowing costs. By adding the reversal of the impairment of deposit for acquisition
of properties, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$34,430,000
(2016: loss attributable to equity holders of the Company: HK$26,492,000) and basic
eamings per share was HK9.33 cents (2016: loss per share: HK7.18 cents). The Group

was encouraged by such outstanding results.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

To reward shareholders for their unwavering support, the Board of Directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share. Together
with the paid interim dividend of HKI.0 cent per share for the six months ended 31st
December 2016, the total dividend for the year was HK3.0 cents per share.

Among the Group's three major businesses, the engineering plastics business delivered
the most satisfactory performance. The Group's operating strategy of developing the
high-end market to replace the traditional market started to yield results. More new
customers were secured during the year, including overseas high-end toy and household
goods brands that are required to observe higher international safety standards. The
segment’s tumover surged by 9.3% year-on-year to HK$198,649,000, while gross profit
margin increased by 3.4 percentage points when compared with the corresponding
period last year. To enhance production efficiency and reduce labour costs, the Group
optimised the production facilities at its plant and carried out an extensive transformation
and an upgrade of its automated production system during the year, thereby enhancing
production efficiency. It also strengthened the capabilities of the research and
development (R&D) centre at its factory in Dongguan. As a result, the Group now boasts
top-notch technological advantages in products that enable it to meet customers’ product
specifications, provide better quality, high-tech and high value-added products and thus it
can better stand out in the market. These advantages have attracted renowned domestic
and overseas brands and have fortified the Group's position in the industry. Profit before
taxation rose more than double year-on-year. In particular, the Group's Dongguan office
reported an satisfactory performance with profit before taxation more than twice that
in the corresponding period last year. As the Group strengthens its existing technologies
and continues to expand its factory in Shanghai, it is believed that the Group’s competitive
edge of good product quality will steadily attract more domestic and overseas customers,

thus creating more profit streams.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Regarding the colorants, pigments and compounded plastic resin business segment,
turnover dropped by 7.2% to HK$315,619,000 during the year. Nonetheless the Group's
operational strategy of focusing on developing higher margin products was effective
and related costs were reduced, gross profit margin was 1.5 percentage points higher
than the previous year and profit before taxation also grew by 13.1%. While the Group
has continued to invest in market expansion and product development for medical
application-related packaging and automobile-related products and services, the strong
need for contemporary products and associated devices in the market and higher demand
for better technology and quality create a huge potential for development. Thus, the
Group has actively worked with high-end mobile device manufacturers in Mainland
China during the year. On top of smartphones, it has also expanded into markets of new
products such as smart electronic products, electronic healthcare products and drones.
Besides, the Group's electric vehicle-related products have been qualified for acceptance
by a renowned international automobile brand marking successful entry into a new
energy electric vehicle market with a higher entry barrier. The Group has also liaised
with companies engaging in the business of household goods and children and women's
personal care products with the aim to expand its income streams and customer base.
Through cooperating with mid-range and high-end smartphone customers in China, the
Group believes that it can seize a larger market share. As the newly relocated plant in
Xiamen which has gradually ramped up operations, the Group can effectively facilitate
the integration of its resources, centralise inventory management to reduce logistics costs,
as well as enhance both production capacity and product quality, thereby accelerating

business growth and continuously contributing to profit.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

For the plastics trading business, as the Group's strategic adjustment of its sales model
started to deliver results, the Renminbi exchange rate gradually stabilised, and prices
of plastic raw materials climbed steadily due to rising oil prices, customers shifted
from being conservative to a more aggressive approach in placing purchase orders.
During the year, the Group strengthened its efforts on the Northern and Western
China markets and focused on developing and producing high-end products such as
automobile-related products to replace lower-margin plastic products. It also liaised with
internationally renowned fast food restaurant chains regarding supplying raw materials
to their designated premiums manufacturers, which brought stable large sales orders to
the Group. Hence, turover of this segment increased by 8.4% to 1,063,688,000 from
last year, gross profit margin rose 2.1 percentage points and loss before taxation notably
shrank to HK$1,710,000. In addition, the use of alternative plastic raw materials of the
“industrial pneumatic pump” product for the application of heavy industries such as the
petrochemical, automobile and construction sectors was officially launched and attracted
considerable attention in the market. The Group believes the product will become a new
income source. The Group will continue to explore opportunities for customers with
high potential, actively discuss with end-customers for cooperation opportunities and shift
to sell specialised raw materials with higher margin as demanded by customers. It will
also strive to source more export customers with high potential through broadening its

product mix in a bid to expand its customer base and tap the development of the market.

PROSPECTS

The outlook of the global economy has shifted from being challenging in the last year
to being positive. The petroleum exporting countries, including two major petroleum
producers Saudi Arabia and Russia, have agreed to decrease production and extend this
agreement into the coming year. The management believes that this initiative will help the
oil price remain stable and boost the demand for and prices of industrial raw materials.
The stabilised Renminbi exchange rate would also be favourable for the Group's business
development. However, in the second half of 2017, the global economy will continue
to be affected by natural disasters and geopolitical tensions, the economic growth
momentum will still face considerable risks. Given the unclear and uncertain prospects for
the development of the market, the management remains cautiously optimistic about the

Group's future development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
PROSPECTS (Continued)

Regarding strategic business development, the Group will continue to implement its set
development direction and complement its corporate strategy of focusing on developing
high value-added products with high-margin and carefully selecting reputable customers,
thereby enabling it to seize the development opportunities in different markets.
Meanwhile, the Group will increase investment in R&D resources and enhance the quality
of its products, so as to realise its first mover advantage among the peers and maintain
stronger bargaining power on product prices. In addition, the Group will continue working
closely with the International Colour Alliance in a bid to explore more markets with

greater growth potential as well as broaden its clientele and income stream.

As for cost control, the Group will keep improving the production facilities of its factory
and will transform and upgrade the automated production system, thereby boosting
production efficiency and reducing labour costs. Its Shanghai plant will continue to expand
while its newly relocated plant in Xiamen will commence production. With the doubling
the size of the existing plant, this newly relocated factory in Xiamen not only will possess
a larger production capacity, but also will better focus on inventory management and
flexibly adjust its production strategy, so as to carry out speedy delivery and address the
market trend in order to expand its business. It also aims to achieve greater economies
of scale through implementing stringent cost control measures. The Group believes that
the integration of internal and external resources and the continued execution of proven
development plans will bolster overall profit performance and support the Group's long-

term development.

In the face of the uncertainties in the global economy, the Group will continue to closely
monitor the market conditions and adopt sound business strategies and a pragmatic
and aggressive approach as in the past. Guided by the leadership of the professional
management team relying on years of industry experience, it is believed that the Group

can stand out from its peers in the market and bring promising retums to its shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and
banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2017 the Group
has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$480,851,000, of which
approximately HK$351,622,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate
guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties and restricted bank deposits in The People's Republic
of China and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes 15, 16, |7 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash and bank balances as at 30th June
2017 amounted to approximately HK$105,947,000. The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th
June 2017 was approximately 72%, based on the total bank borrowings of approximately

HK$331,830,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$460, 132,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and contingent liabilities, and the Company's
contingent liabilities are disclosed in Notes 31, 36 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its exchange

risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.

At 30th June 2017, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward
contracts in order to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its

operations as follows:
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2017, the Group had approximately 708 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual employees
and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is geared to the
profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an incentive to motivate
its employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The Group also provides
social or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be)

to its employees depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

|, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my fellow
directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group will, as
always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive for its long-term development
and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more promising results in

the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2017
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Report of the

Directors

EFERE




The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 30th June 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in Note 5 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's performance for the
year ended 30th June 2017 as well as prospects of the Group's business are provided in

the "Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to |5 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of the Group,
some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to external environment.

Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i) Volatility of economic climate in The People's Republic of China (the “PRC") and

Hong Kong, which is closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of the PRC, the Group
is continuing to expand the overseas markets. The Group continues to take a
cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and recognizes the need to

sustain sales momentum.
(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade debtors
is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimize any credit risk

associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the financial

year.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement the
financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 8 to |5 and 57 to 174, respectively, of this
Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE WITH
RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully committed to
making a difference for its staff, the community and the common good. During the year
there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to treasure the staff, community

and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in Hong
Kong and the PRC while the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and is listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). During the year ended
30th June 2017 and up to the date of this Directors' Report, the Group has complied with

all relevant laws and regulations in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH ITS KEY STAKEHOLDERS INCLUDING EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group,
the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and development for

employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers' needs and continues to
contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic materials which
suit the customers' requirements, which include their social responsibility and

sustainability.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of suppliers
and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good quality and ethics.
The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of them to comply with our

social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement

on page 49.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HKI.0 cent per ordinary share,

totalling HK$3,692,000, which was paid on 6th April 2017.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary
share, totalling HK$7,384,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out

in Notes 27 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

Note |5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2017, the reserves of the Company available for distribution, comprising
the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to approximately HK$71,407,000
(2016: HK$64,887,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the realisable value of the company's
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and there
was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 175.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5Sth

December 2002. Under the terms of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their

discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options to subscribe for the shares

of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options to

eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an offer to take up Share
Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix Il of the circular issued by the
Company on |8th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share Option may be granted
under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme as at the date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which
is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any other option
schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any |2-month

period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(iv)

)

i)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors (the
“Board") may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not
expire more than |0 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a period
of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$ 1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange daily quotations sheet
on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option, (i) the average price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer for the
grant of a Share Option or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever is the

greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between 22nd
November 2012 and 2 Ist November 2022 to offer the grant of an option to any
qualifying participants.

No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2017 are set out in Note

34 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr NG Chi Ming

Mr HUI Yan Kuen (Appointed on /st January 2017)

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr CHAN Dit Lung *

Mr CHING Yu Lung *

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

In accordance with clause 86(2) of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr HUI Yan Kuen, who was
appointed after the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24th November
2016, shall hold office until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM") and shall
be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

Mr HUI Sai Chung, Madam LIU Sau Lai and Mr CHING Yu Lung retire by rotation in
accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and long-
term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels,
the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-
term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an equity component that
is designed to align the long-term interest of management with those of shareholders.
The remuneration package comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary

bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee meetings.

The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director is entitled
under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities which he or she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution or discharge of his or her duties. To the extent
permitted by such Ordinance, the Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought against
directors of companies in the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2017, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO™), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2017
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Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BERAzARARNDHE
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Directors BEns BARER TEER REER HitiiE s
Mr HUI Sai Chung AR A& Long positions 5F & 15787,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AFEE A Long positions #F & 19,850400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Mr HUI Yan Kuen AR Long positions #F& —  202721,500(c) — -
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBXL Long positions 5F& 1,423,000 — = (d)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Notes:

(@

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit"), a company in
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (Note (d)). In addition, 6,000,000
shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai Chung.
Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable
preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow Company
Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (Note (d)). In addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by

Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI Kwok Kwong.
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of

no par value in Evergrow.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit"), a company in
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (d)). In addition, 6,000,000
shares are held by Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win
are held by Mr HUI Yan Kuen.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held
196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2017, are as follows:

Report of the Directors

ESERE

EERBETRAEREALAAHR
HEHEBIERARES 2
BER/ KR &)

L -

@

ZERDF 2 196,721,500 8% Ty Good Benefit
Limited ([ Good Benefit]) # 7 ° Ever Win
Limited ([Ever Win])#78 Good Benefit B2 2
W+ E—#Em (M EE(d) o b - 6,000,000
MER% 17 B Ever Win E12 554 ©

Ever WinBREE | f17T 2 L@ 50,001 i
RFHREERE STt EEERARBES D
Rl A Ever Win A REE B 1 A] e B E1E
FRR1D 33,957 RK 5B

ZEWH P 21967215008 T3 i Good
Benefit# A ° Evergrow Company Limited
(TEvergrow])# 78 Good Benefit B2 28+
B — (M (d)) © BEob + 2,082,000 8% B 13
F Evergrow B 154 o

Evergrow & i E (& | N 7T 2 & 3 A% 15 50,000
BReFELEERE TEAXELESHES
Evergrow AR EEENA LIRAIERBERH
30,823 % °

ZEWBF 2 196,721,500 8 JrEd Good Benefit
Limited ([ Good Benefit]) # 7% ° Ever Win
Limited ([ Ever Win])#%8 Good Benefit B9 2
o+ — R (P EE(d)) o LE o+ 6,000,000
AR AR B Ever Win #2158 © Ever Win B E
18| IN7T 2 E AN 333 AT AL AR o

B E Good Benefit(R=T—+F A=+
BHAARDTE 196721 500 RIRGD ) RA 2 B2s
BEWNT

Number Percentage

of shares of holding

Name of Directors EEpsg RO #E BERESL
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaudiy 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong R 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BABRLL 80 0.8%
Others Hity 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

As at 30th June 2017, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred
shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an option granted

to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred

BEERRETHRAERARFDR
HEMBEBZIEREARES 2
ERR/SREE)

RZE—+FRA=TH TIEZHARA
ERRHERADERERET RN #s -
M #% A Al ¥ 2 & T Ngai Hing (Internatlonal)

shares. Company Limited ATBE & F il S5 ZRERET
2 BEIRAE -
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
REERERETROEA

Personal Other

interests interests
Name of Directors HEERA BARER Hthfes
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaudbes 200,000 50,000(i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AR LA 200,000 50,000(ii)
Notes: Mist -

(i) These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of the
Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at 30th June
2017, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,

(@)  at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b)  none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the

Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2017, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any
substantial shareholders' interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company's
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief executives as disclosed

above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major suppliers are

as follows:
The largest supplier 25%
Five largest suppliers combined 68%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers is less
than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2017 and therefore no

additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

Report of the Directors
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the

major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors and the
Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It also reviews
the effectiveness of the external audit and of intemal controls and risk evaluation. The
Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr HO
Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the

annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2017 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires and,

being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices
and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management throughout the
growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises on maintaining and

carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended 30th June 2017, except for

the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this annual report, the board
(the "Board") of directors (the "Directors”) of the Company has not appointed any
individual to be the chief executive. The roles of the chief executive have been performed
collectively by all the executive Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The
Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when it thinks

appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors confirmed they have

complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the year.
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EEELRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship between Board members. The Board conducts meetings
on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the year,
the Board held a total of four regular board meetings, six ad-hoc board meetings and one

general meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

Exg
EZEHH  EECERREFLRELY

ARRNESZSAEHENRONER  ME
RHITESRFNTEETNASNMRFHE -
EEeNE v ATERANE  BE - REX
HBX /A2 BER EFSUTHRTEE
BRENUFIEEFARTEE - RER
EEEAHBTNATHESE SR K

out below: NEZEERER—RBRRAG - EFGHUK
EEHEFRBOT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings  Attendance 155 Attendance B3R  Attendance
Attendants HEE fIERy  HERE SBRE HEAR KSR HERY
Executive Directors: HTEE
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) FHREEE (2E) 4 4 6 6
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B A
(Deputy Chairman and (BlEE#
Managing Director) EFLIE) 4 4 6 5
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony R h
(Vice Chairman) (BIEE) 4 4 6 6 | |
Madam LIU Sau Lai BABLL 4 4 6 6 | |
Mr NG Chi Ming RERALE 4 4 6 6 | |
Mr HUI Yan Kuen REARSLA
(Appointed on st january 20/7) (R=FE—+F
—A—BEZL) 4 2 6 4 0
Independent Non-executive Directors:  BUHHTEE -
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fgEEE 4 4 6 0 ! |
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRixae st 4 4 6 0 | |
Mr CHING Yu Lung RmELsE 4 4 6 0 | |
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance (Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the Board
and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or financial
management expertise. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 5
to the annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and

qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent non-

executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive Directors
and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its approval. The principal

functions of the Board are:

® 1o establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and set

the objectives of the management;

®  to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

®  to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

®  to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30th June 2017, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2017, the members
of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new
and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2017, have applied them consistently with
previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made are prudent and

reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG

Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 45 to 48.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr HUI Sai Chung, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying,
Anthony, Madam LIU Sau Lai, Mr NG Chi Ming, Mr HUI Yan Kuen, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul,
Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial to the Company in their
respective fields, including attending seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered
by professional bodies and self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills

50 as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all Directors for
their continuous professional development. During the year ended 30th June 2017 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has arranged to provide the Directors

with briefing on the amendments to the Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities of the
Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been complied with the

CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) was
established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in accordance with
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and

attendance record of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

EEERRE

REEEE

ARANMREZEG((REZEG IR -F
—ZHEZAZTABREBRAREOBES
BN - REZESHERBUFNTERR
—ZHRTERANK - AARIEELEAT

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HESERY R HE=R
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MRExLE (FEELE) 313 100.00%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIXBESL & 313 100.00%
Mr CHING Yu Lung Ruge St E 23 66.66%
Mr HUI Sai Chung AR A 313 100.00%
Role and Function HRRBE
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and REZECEETHRNETSHNEE  HE
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular REE(BERN AFRER)  UHEM

basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee would review the Board's composition from time to time where Board
diversity would be considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 30th June 2017 to review the structure, size and composition (including the

skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
September 2017 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee consists
of all independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of

the Audit Committee are as follows:

ERZEEE

A
ARRRBMRTZREMRE 2 AL ENE
RZEE(IBRZEg ) BREEREN_Z
—tFENAZT A BEHN - BRZECHEE
BUFNTESEN - EREEGZAKRE
EaskmT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESERY, R HE®E

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEELE (FEELE) 3/3 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIXBESL & 313 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung TRagE St E 313 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and credibility of
financial reporting, risk management and intemal control procedures as well as to maintain

an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations
set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given below are the main duties of the

Audit Committee:

(@) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and

scope of the audit;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
Role and Function (Continued)
() to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the

Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concemn assumptions and any qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial

reporting; and

(d)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters
the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where

necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2017, the Audit Committee met three times, in particular,

to review and discuss the followings:

®  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

®  the appointment of external auditor;

the establishment of internal control system; and
° the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and all

senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee") in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors and
an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

FHZESS

UYNSILES - B A ok - S NG F <
WZEg((FMZES ) CREREER-F
—ZE-AZTRREH - HFHEREEh =
BUFNTEER—URITESAK - FME
e AR RELENT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESBAE HBRE HER
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) REELE (FEELE) 313 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIKBESLE 313 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RInRER A 313 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung vl 313 100%

Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive Directors and senior
management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance
and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee held three meetings during the year ended 30th June 2017 to review the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and the remuneration packages of

the Directors and the senior management of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

EEERRE

REAME

RNER  ROAGZHEE LR KBS EH
PRt 2 B2 MIFBERRE - MARBRALE
REENREN < ABERMT

HK$
B
Audit services for the Group REAEBERM 2 EZRE 1,908,000
Non-audit services including: FELRGELRE
— review of interim results —EHPEEE 268,000
— taxation services for the Group — RAEBERM 2 HIARE 332,000
— agreed upon procedures on the Group's annual results announcement —REBERFXENH I ETIER 22,000
Total B 2,530,000
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE tEERZES
Composition A
A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate Governance ARAREERZES([PEEREZESR])

Committee”) was established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate Governance Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of the

Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

RZF——FZ A TNERETAHR TR
BEEKY - CXERZEEMERBUIFY
TEEMAMK - RARRHELENT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESERY R HE®E
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) EELE (FEELE) 212 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIKBESLE 22 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RInEER A 22 100%

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; reviewing and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2017 to review the corporate governance
policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on corporate governance

to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group has formulated and
adopted a risk management process which includes risk identification, risk evaluation, risk
mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At least on an annual basis, the management of
the Company identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's
objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard
criteria. Risk mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be

significant, which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and
errors. In addition, the Group has established internal control protocols and control self-
assessment process on major operations. Assessment results are submitted to the Board

for ongoing monitoring purpose.

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and the Audit
Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal audit functions for the
Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of intemal controls are identified
and recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant internal control
deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to

ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The risk management and
interal control systems of the Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr Chan possesses the necessary
qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing the functions of a company
secretary. Mr Chan is the secretary of the Board and various Board committees including
audit committee, remuneration committee, Corporate Governance Committee and

nomination committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, Mr Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and
enquiries from Shareholders may be put to the Board through the following channels to

the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"):

I by mail to the Company's head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Center,
10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 1663
3. byfaxat fax number +852 2694 0877; or
4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. Constantly being
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the

Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a high

level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in
all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board attends the
Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders” questions. Poll results are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the Company's corporate website

shortly after the meetings.

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of

Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice™) at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre, 10 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by the Shareholder concemed including
the information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her
personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice
as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business days prior to the date of the general

meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply with the code

provision E.|.4 of the CG Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group") set out on pages 49 to 174, which

comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2017,

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

0 the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of

significant accounting policies.
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OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"™)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter identified in our audit is valuation of investment properties.

Key Audit Matter

B3R &

BRRETSEMA
BMERFTIRNARBATEBRENE
MfhME -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of investment properties
Refer to Notes 2.7, 4(c), 7 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group's investment properties were carried at HK$127,801,000 as at 30th
June 2017 with a revaluation gain of HK$5,845,000 recorded in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 30th June 2017.

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group were derived
using the income capitalisation method. Independent professional valuer was
engaged by management to assist in estimating the values of the investment
properties. Due to the unique nature of each investment property, the
assumptions applied in the valuations were determined having regard to
each property's characteristics. These valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant management judgement, such as
capitalisation rates including outgoings, passing rentals of the current leases and
comparable market transactions.

BRETEE

In assessing the appropriateness of management's valuations of
investment properties, we performed the following procedures:

. We obtained and read the valuation reports prepared by
the independent professional valuer. We evaluated the
independent professional valuer's competence, capabilities
and objectivity.

. We involved our in-house valuation experts in assessing
the valuation methodology used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions adopted such as capitalisation
rates including outgoings by comparing them to publicly
available data and their knowledge of the property
industry.

. We have also checked the passing rentals of the current
leases adopted by the independent professional valuer by
comparing them to latest lease agreements of the Group
as at 30th June 2017.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

ERESEAE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

We focused on the evaluation of management's assessment on the valuations ®
of the Group's investment properties because this assessment involved
management's significant judgement and estimates and the carrying values of

these investment properties are financially significant to the Group.

We assessed the reasonableness of the fair value of the
investment properties valued by independent professional
valuer by comparing against the market transactions based

on our own market research.

We found the valuation methodology and key assumptions used

by management were supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such intermal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
IBIL % B BT R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concemn basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
IBIL % B BT R &

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th September 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

For the year ended 30th June 2017 #Z = F—+Fx A =1 HIFF/Z

2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P &E TER TET
Revenue L 5 1,580,329 1,506,063
Cost of sales SHE R 8 (1,362,805)  (1,318513)
Gross profit EM 217,524 187,550
Rental income HE WA 6 6,503 5,594
Other gains/(losses), net Hilzs/ (F18) —F8 7 17,126 (13,053)
Distribution costs 2 SHRCAR 8 (76,572) (79,744)
Administrative expenses TB X 8 (105,416) (104,882)
Operating profit/(loss) s,/ (EE) 59,165 (4,535)
Finance income s et 1,550 1,565
Finance costs M%ER (11,140) (11,098)
Finance costs, net BBER -8 9 (9,590) (9,533)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BB REF (E1E) 49,575 (14,068)
Income tax expense BB 10 (12,790) (11,297)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEREH,/ (E1]) 36,785 (25,365)
Attributable to: AT AT -
Equity holders of the Company NAIIRER 34,430 (26,492)
Non-controlling interests R 2,355 1,127
36,785 (25,365)
Eamings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) AFEERARRREMGRF,(EE)
attributable to equity holders of the Company ZERER(EE)
during the year (expressed in HK cent per share) (ARG
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 12 9.33 (7.18)

The notes on pages 57 to 174 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ES7TEITAENN T RGN BRRNER

statements. 2 o
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Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income

FEaHkm=ER

For the year ended 30th June 2017 #Z=F—+FNA=+HIFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THRT

Profit/(loss) for the year AERF/ (BB) 36,785 (25,365)

Other comprehensive loss: Hirira s -

ltem that will not be reclassified subsequently to income statement: BT @R BT BEENERZIER ¢

Revaluation gain of property, plant and equipment on WE - W RREERE
transfer to investment properties REMEZ Bt 363 —

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement: HenpEoBElamRk v ER

Currency translation differences 5 =R (4,226) (32,174)
Other comprehensive loss for the year AFEMEEER (3863 (32,174)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year KEFEWE/ (BB) B 32,922 (57,539)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to: Hals/ (BR)BEEER

— Equity holders of the Company —NEIMRE 30,607 (58,273)

— Non-controlling interests —FEiE IR 2,315 734

32,922 (57,539)

s

The notes on pages 57 to 174 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FS7EI7T4ANMERBERES P HEERRN

statements. BRI o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEBERRE

As at 30th June 2017 R=FE—+FNA=+H

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt £ TEr TEX
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE k& 15 117,412 118,172
Leasehold land and land use rights ME 3 o L fb A 16 18,531 22,397
Investment properties KEME 17 127,801 106,050
Intangible assets RV EE 18 — o
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEEREEE 19 2,000 2,000
Deferred income tax assets ELHBAE 29 5,655 6,052
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment NE - BE L& BHREE
E=nd
and renovation costs B 4,929 1,339
276,328 256,010
Current assets RBAE
Inventories wE 21 255,767 228571
Trade and bills receivables BRI RERRE 22 264,882 248,086
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Al - BRRREE 26,599 17,347
Income tax recoverable AR 501 248
Restricted bank deposits KB HHRITIE R 24 22,989 23,256
Cash and bank balances He RRTES 2% 105,947 73821
676,685 591,329
Total assets BEE 953,013 847,339
EQUITY a3
Capital and reserves attributable to the ARIBCRIEIE A Rl 1
Company's equity holders
Share capital B 26 36,920 36,920
Share premium BB 26 62,466 62,466
Other reserves H At fife 27 43,960 49,903
Retained eamings RE A 27 316,786 286,048
460,132 435,337
Non-controlling interests U 23,065 20,384
Total equity Bmas 483,197 455721
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HERERR/E

As at 30th June 2017 R=ZFE—+FNA=+H

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pl £ TR TR
LIABILITIES B
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEHEREG 29 6,863 6,151
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and bills payables BIRNRRENER 25 88,513 72,875
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HthENRK BT RERER 35,127 24,079
Bank borrowings RITIEE 28 331,830 280,843
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIA 23 29 584
Income tax payable ERTHIEA 7,454 7,086
462,953 385,467
Total liabilities BafR 469,816 391618
Total equity and liabilities pEzREE 953,013 847,339
The notes on pages 57 to 174 are an integral part of these consolidated financial BSR4 BRM i ABASAMBRRNE

statements.

The financial statements on pages 49 to |74 were approved by the Board of Directors on

28th September 2017 and were signed on its behalf

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

AR FFEL

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
ES FIEEREFAHEIE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEESRBIR

For the year ended 30th June 2017 #Z2 —F—+FNA=1HIFFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RARRELSH

Other reserves

Aol

Available
for-sale

financial Exchange

assetreserve fluctuation Non-
Share Share Copitd ~ Revdation ~ AJRHIE reserve Retaned  controling

captal premium reserve rseve  HIBEE B eamings interests Total
e BEEE  AAHE  BRES e BRE  RIEN FENER 2
HK$000 HKB000  HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
TR THEX TEx TERT THEXT TEx TET TERT TER

At Ist July 2015 RZE-7E+A-H 3690 62466 408 7590 1310 7068 31623 U3 51840
Comprehensive oss FaBE
(Loss)proft for he year KE(5R) /57 - - - - = - (49 L7 (25369)
Other comprehensice loss L
Currency transiation differences EiEE - - - - o (31781) - (39 (A
Total comprehensive loss GREESE - - - S = G178l (2649) 734 (575%9)
Transactions with owners BEEIRS
Disposal of interests in subsidiianies without MERRAEES
change of control (Note 39) WBRAREREE (W) = = 207 = = = = 87 120
201415 fial dvidend paid ZH-2-B/-F-1%F
RERE = = = = = = (369) = (3692)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests T HbIER RS - - - » - - - (15%9) (15%9)
Total transactons vith owners HFEI 54T = = 207 = = = (369) (1.686) (5171)
At 30th une 2016 RZE-AERA=TH 3690 62466 815 759 1310 40388 286048 0B 457
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEEREHR

For the year ended 30th June 2017 B2 = F—+F~NA=1+HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRREEDH
Other reserves
Al
Available
for-sale
financial Exchange
assetreserve  fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capitl Revawation  WHELE reserve Retained  controlling
apial  premium reserve reseve  BIFEE EX  aming  interests Total
ke BEEE  EARE  ERRE BfE  RERE REEN FENER e
HK$000  HK§000  HK§'000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén  TER TR TEr  TEr  TEn  TER TEr  TEx
At lst]uly 2016 KRB EtA-A 36920 62466 615 7590 1310 40,388 286,048 20384 455721
Comprehensive income FalE
Profitfor the year REET - - - - - = 3440 2355 36,785
Other comprehensive loss A BE
Currency transiation differences EiEE - - - - — (4186) - (40) (4206)
Revaluation gain of property, plant and 0% BERGEEAZ
equipment on transfer o REMZ 2 Eft s
investment properties - - - 363 - - - - 363
Total comprehensive income Al - - - 363 — (4,186) 34430 2315 n9m
Transactions with owners HfEE2RH
Acquiston of nterest in a subsidary without ~ AAE IR KB AR
change of control (Note 35) s (I3 35) - - (2120) - - - - 2118 @
2018/17 interim didend paid IHZF-1/Z5LER
hRE = = = = = = (369 = (3692)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests THFIRHES 2 RS - - - - - - - (1,752) (1752)
Total transactions with owners HFEIR54E - - (2,120) - - - (3,692) 366 (5,446)
At 30th June 2017 RZE—+55A=1H 36920 62466 (1,505) 1953 1310 36,202 316,786 23,065 483,197

The notes on pages 57 to |74 are an integral part of these

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEBHERER

For the year ended 30th June 2017 B2 = F—+F~NA=1+HILFZ

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn THT
Cash flows from operating activities REZBZHEN
Cash generated from operations REEBRMEE RS 30,828 78776
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (B#)/ REBEHNEH (1,033) 563
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") EZPEARKLME
income tax paid (THREL)) PR H (10,479) (8361)
PRC withholding tax paid EHPBERREMED — 219)
Interest received E RS 582 233
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBMEEZFRE 19,898 70,992
Cash flows from investing activities REZBZHEER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BERHR (13,278) (7,138)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HENE  WE k&
and equipment IECES 100 170
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment mE - BERREBEEE
and renovation costs AN (4,929) (1,367)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (4,014) =
Other tax paid for the land use right Wb £ 3 b AR 2 B TR IE 2 b — 176
Restricted bank deposits REHIERITER — (24,243)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMERZFR S (22,121) (32,402)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=
[17 \éfﬂ ﬁ 5)?[. ==} %
For the year ended 30th June 2017 B2 = F—+F~NA=1+HILFE

2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P E TER TET

Cash flows from financing activities REXB HER
Proceeds from bank loans I IRITER 502,001 238,147
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (501,792) (223,189)
Increase/(decrease) in trust receipt loans MR ETE M, () 52,190 (47,186)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XTI RIS 2 RS (1,752) (1,599)
Dividends paid X RE (3,692) (3,692)
Sale of interests in subsidiaries ek VNG £ = 120
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary WRENT B N R 2 ) —
Interest paid on bank borrowings EMRITEEMS (11,140) (11,098)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities MEEBMEL/(FR)2FR: 35813 (48,497)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ~ RE&RREFE22M/ (D) 33,590 (9.907)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FOzRekReFR 30(c) 63,666 78,569
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERBEN S E (567) (4,996)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZAE KR FH 30(c) 96,689 63,666

The notes on pages 57 to 174 are an integral part of these consolidated financial BSIEITABNNEAGRA IS RRNEE

statements. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HMI |,

Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have

been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th September 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issues by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial asset, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,

which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continveq) 2~ T EEHEBES)

2.  Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 HREEE)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires RENEE B BRE LN
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management HRFRERETHRSHMESE -
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting ENEEEREERAASENS
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or ATEERBRPITREEAE - RS
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated B HETs R EEE AR - X

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a)  Effect of adopting new standards, amendments/revises to

standards and interpretation

Amendment to Hong Kong Accounting Standard

(“HKAS") 16 and HKAS 38

HEB S ENE 6 FRBB G E]

F 38RAER]

Amendment to HKFRS | |

HEBIUHRELRE || FROER]

Amendments to HKAS |6 and HKAS 41
HEBGFLERSE 6K RBEGHER

4| FAMERT

Amendment to HKAS 27
HBEB ST ERE 27 RMERT

Annual Improvements Project

FEMERR

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
HEBMEREERE 105 - HEHMER
F R RBALTERE 28 BT

Amendments to HKAS |
HBEBLFERE | BT

HKFRS 14
BAMBREERSE 145
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fHEMEE - EME4RRE -

(a)  HRANFTER - HEBIRIES
TR EZ S

Classification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation

BRITE R ATRR A

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
BEARGE G 8E

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

B¥ - EEMEY

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
B IR 2 A

Annual Improvements 2012 - 2014 Cycle
T FE-T-NFERzE

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
BREEMNER - BRAHHPIIMIE

Disclosure Initiative

RETHIE

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

BREERTR,



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continveq) 2 T EEHERBES)

2./

Basis of preparation (Continued)

@

()

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments/revises to

standards and interpretation (Continued)

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments/revises
to standards and interpretation has had no material effect on the

Group's result and financial position.

21 HREEE)
(@) FWIER - HEAMEH
SEITHRBZ 2R
RAA LA AR SRR R
B/ BN R ASE
ZEERIBRRLEER

B 988
wE

The following new standards and amendments to standards have (b) UTAREAHELIEREE

been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2016 and have not been early adopted:

Amendments to HKAS 12
HEBGFERSE 2RMNEBET

Amendments to HKAS 7
HAEB LI ERE7ROEE

Amendment to HKFRS 12

HEBMBRELERSE 12RNER]

HKFRS 9
BAMBREERE IR

HKFRS 15
BAMBREENSE 155

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HEBMBRELERE 2ROE

]

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HEBMBHRELERE 45R0EFT

Amendment to HKFRS |

HEBI RS RS | Fe0iEiT

i

ECT-AFLA-REMN
MBE R AR AR R R

B IELT - AL
SR

Income Taxes '

FS Mt

Statement of Cash Flows '
RemEax

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities '
HihEREEHE

Financial Instruments *
SR TH?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers ?

P& R

Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions

DA AR SN R S0 73 MG &2

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts ?

HHREMBRERERIER [RIREF] Bt
BRMBMELENFER [EMTE] 2

First Time Adoption of HKFRS ?
BRRME BN BREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continveq) 2~ T EEHEBES)

2./

Basis of preparation (Continued)

)

The following new standards and amendments to standards have

21 HREEE)
(b) UTAEAHETIEREE

=

been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist E_T-RELA-BEN

July 2016 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 28
BB ST ERE 28 MEET

Hong Kong International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“HK (IFRIC)")
Interpretation 22

BB (ARMBEREREZES)REE LR

HKFRS 16
BANHHREERAE 165

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 23
ER(BRMBREREZRE)REE R

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HEBMHRELEIF 105K
BRGEHERIE 28 RMER]

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2018

BB R AR AT A & B
ERIMER - AREY ER
RS (8)

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
REBEMG ERENRE

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 2

IMNEZ HFTRN,TRUEIE?

Leases *

e

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments®

PR ERIEN T 11

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture *

RAEFHABEHALOCRZANEELERTE

S tﬁ-ﬂ—ﬁtﬁ@ii&ﬁﬁﬁiﬂl
: 8- \F—H—BEOFRAMER

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2019 3 B -NF—A—HEHFRBHAER

! To be determined 4 UHU@FE

The Group has commenced, but not yet completed, an assessment AEEEFE (BI R

of the impact of the new standards and amendments to standards B) BEULE TR R

on its results of operations and financial position. However, none of AMEITEARE 2 ¥E&

the above new standards and amendments to standards is expected K BARE AR B 52 2 1T AT

to have a significant effect on the financial statements, except the f o BEE TR R ER

following set out below: HETRRI e HAER
MEGIBHRERREKNER
T8 MUATIHEER
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2./

Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

The following new standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2016 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification and measurement of financial
assets, financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and impairment
requirements for financial assets. It replaces the guidance in HKAS
39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary measurement categories
for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other

comprehensive income and fair value through profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a

credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised

SRR

TREHRRBER )
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ATABAMELFREE
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PRGN (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continveq) 2~ T EEHEBES)

2.]  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HHEREEE)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards have () WUTAELMELIFREE
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist E_T-RELA-BEN
July 2016 and have not been early adopted: (Continued) BTN 3 B e

ERIMER - AREY ER
RS (8)

HKFRS 9: “financial Instruments” (Continued) TEE B ERE 95 &
BIR/E)
Application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on ARBEMBMEERF
the classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets. SREVER ARG Y AR B
The Group's available-for-sale investment will either be measured as BEEMDENHEBELE
fair value through profit or loss or be designated as fair value through AFE - FEEMAHEE
other comprehensive income (subject to fulfillment of the designation RE  BURAEENER
criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss model may result in ABH  IBEEARLR
early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation BEGAEMZEARAE
to the Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost. However, MEBERE) . 1o 7
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HERERER A8
HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review. BENATENEETKE

EEMBRRAGHEER -
BAKBETHAESH -
HEBRBRELENFIR
FENR B RB A

E’\J o
HKFRS 9 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after |st BEEMBRELANEIRY
January 2018. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the AE_Z-N\F-A—B%
standard before its effective date. LRI BE RN

BAl AREEFTERELE
A0 F B R SR AR UL ZE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.]  Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning |st
July 2016 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 15: "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards: HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS || Construction Contracts, and the related
Interpretations on revenue recognition. HKFRS |5 establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step approach:
(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer; (2) Identify separate
performance obligations in a contract; (3) Determine the transaction
price; (4) Allocate transaction price to performance obligations; and
(5) Recognise revenue when performance obligation is satisfied. The
core principle is that a company should recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away
from a revenue recognition model based on an “eamings processes”
to an “asset-liability” approach based on transfer of control. HKFRS
|5 provides specific guidance on capitalisation of contract cost, license
arrangements and principal versus agent commissions. It also includes
a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity's contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after |st January 2018 and earlier application
is permitted. The Group does not plan to early adopt HKFRS 15, The
Group assessed the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 5 by analysing
the Group's key revenue streams against the 5-step approach and did
not expect the adoption would have a material impact at the Group's
result and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2./

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards have

been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2016 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 16 ‘Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the
balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting

for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group's operating
leases. As at the 30th June 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$15,306,000 (Note 31). The
Directors do not expect the adoption of HKFRSs would result in
significant impact on the Group's result but it is expected that certain
portion of these lease commitments will be required to be recognised

in the consolidated balance sheet as lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.]  Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards have

been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2016 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 16: "Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 6 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after Ist
January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the

standard before its effective date.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)  Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at

their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,

unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

()

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have

been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-

controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continveq) 2~ T EEHEBES)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 HAKHEE)
(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries () HENELAF
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in MARE T BEREEEHEL
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the date when control BERAYE HRNZEBHME
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or MREEZEAREBEE
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of MEtE - MREEZEHAR
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, BRAER - HEER ARSI
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously fERE 2 1A E\%’A TEJZ,E?T
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity BEENREERMS 2
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related ABEENSEA fﬁ o Itk
assets or liabilities. It means the amounts previously recognised oy FETR B 2 E YR A
in consolidated other comprehensive income are reclassified to BRAEZERAEBOTM
consolidated profit or loss or transferred to another category of PERBOARBEEER T
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. Eﬁ BAEEXABHARA

EERERAMEREMLE
EH&mWﬁEu B REEHE
DREFAER  NEHREE
BB R m/&ﬁ‘ﬁ%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment information

24

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

@)

()

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated income statement within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement within “other gains/

(losses), net".

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in consolidated

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss account are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resutting exchange differences are recognised in consolidated

other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in

consolidated profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their

costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land classified as finance lease Shorter of the remaining

lease term or useful life
— Buildings 2% - 2.5%
— Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired

lease term or 20%

— Machinery and equipment 12.5%
— Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
— Motor vehicles 20%
— Tools and moulds 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried at
fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer
is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
the investment property are recognised in the income statement as part of
other gains/losses. If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 42 to 50 years (2016: 42 to 50
years). Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a

straight-line basis over the period of leases.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and buildings,
is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that is not occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment properties. Land held
under operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction

costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

2.8

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated

profit or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss in “other gains/(losses), net".

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated profit

or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property

and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets - Technical know-how

3Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of

five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

29

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than |2 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
include “trade and bill receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”,
“restricted bank deposits” and “cash and bank balances” in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets (b) HHHEBEEE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are AP ERKEEAETS

FHEHRTENBER
WERZIEITETR BRI
RENHREEETEN R
ERRET—EANLER
B BASIRIERBERE

either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the

investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

MBEETHERERS A (AKX

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the

trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the SEAGEBARLEZEEZR)
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs ﬁﬁ«? cHRUFRAABEERE

TRZMBMTGERE  REBR
R EBENRIAARER - BA

nn

for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial

X Bk
V)

assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair

value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated profit or loss. ff%@ﬁi@?ﬁﬁﬁuaﬁﬁmﬁﬁiéﬁg
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from FRELABERR  IXHHAR

IS ?\E\TEEWW’F%%'Z KA

the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has

transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

provision for impairment.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are recognised in consolidated other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 FESHBEEME@E)
210 HBEEE)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the

consolidated profit or loss as gains and losses from investment securities.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss when the Group's right to receive payment is

established.

If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted investments),
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option

pricing models refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

@

Assets carmed at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be

reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

@

()

Assets carmied at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Assets classified as available for sales
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial

assets is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in consolidated profit or loss - is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated profit or loss on equity

instruments are not reversed through the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

212

213

214

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends on whether
the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified
as current if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are

classified as non-current.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the consolidated profit or loss within “other

gains/(losses), net”’.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts,
if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within

borrowings in current liabilities.

2.16 Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially measured
at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

An equity instrument is any contract that does not meet the definition of
financial liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs, net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares

or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Borrowing costs

219

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

()

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income

tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

)

(©

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the

temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits

@

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive obligations to

pay further contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income with a maximum
of HK$ 1,500 per month, as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the PRC. Contributions are made by the Group
on a monthly basis to those state-sponsored retirement plans based
on a percentage of the relevant income of the relevant employees.
The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited by
those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

)

©

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liabilities
for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and

matemity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan (the “Share Option Scheme”). The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
including any market performance conditions; excluding the impact
of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions; and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified performance and service
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income

statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits (Continued)

(©

(@

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

when the options are exercised.

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the Group,
the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants to
take up share options to subscribe for the shares of the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. No share
options were granted or exercised during the year. As at 30th June

2017 and 2016, there is no share option outstanding.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when they are settled.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the

amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

TESHEEME#E)
221 BfEE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

22| Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.

WERETRUEE  BRABE
MR BRI - g
ZREMRREFRET - LR
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BERARAN X RREAFERN
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ZRRERTSHEERRENE
BETEERRAOIME - BERHE
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¥ o

222 Operating leases 222 BEHE
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership REHERERAEEZAR
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made REE L2 MALEARRE ZTE
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are g - R EMEEL 2 HREN
charged to the consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the bR B A EWE 2 E I R & 1% -
period of the lease. REERANNEREEFEBET
S o
When the Group leases out properties under operating lease, the properties EREBNMERBELEHEED
are included in the balance sheet as investment properties (Note 2.7). M ZENEUAREDFEREREE
Revenue arising from properties for leasing purposes under operating lease ERERAMZ27) - REER
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease period (Note 2.24). ENEBEABRNZENHEE RS
MAESE  EHEHNRER K
224) °
2.23 Government grants 223 BF#EE

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated

net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group recognises

revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it

is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when

specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below. The Group bases its estimates of retum on historical results, taking

into consideration the type of customers, the type of transactions and the

specifics of each arrangement.

®

(i)

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Provision of logistic services
Revenue from the provision of logistic services, including freight

forwarding services, is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders for final

dividend and Board of Directors for interim dividend.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

(a)  Forejgn exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi
(“RMB") and US dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency

exposures, primarily with respect to USD and RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies other than
their own functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net
foreign exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign
exchange contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June
2017, the Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts to purchase USD (2016: purchase USD), details of which
have been disclosed in Note 23. Certain of the Group's receivables,
cash and bank balances, trade and bills payables and borrowings
were also denominated in foreign currencies, details of which have
been disclosed in Notes 22, 24, 25 and 28. Since the HK$ is pegged
to USD, management are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk

exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.

At 30th June 2017, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit (2016:
post-tax loss) for the year would have been HK$99,000 (2016:
HK$542,000) lower/higher (2016: lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of foreign currency-

denominated non-derivative financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank. The
Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to
its borrowings. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk whereas those carry at fixed rates expose

the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to

the trend of changes in interest rates.

As at 30th June 2017, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
(2016: post-tax loss) for the year would have been HK$582,000 (201 6é:
HK$398,000) higher/lower (2016: lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest income on cash at bank net off with higher/

lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

(@

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its
plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The Group
closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to determine

its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, restricted bank deposits, trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets included in the consolidated balance sheet represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its

financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank and the restricted bank
deposits are deposited in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong and the PRC, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure
to any financial institution and management does not expect any

losses arising from non-performance by these counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. Normally

the Group does not require collaterals from trade debtors.

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade and other receivables
(including deposits made) based on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the relevant debtors.
The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the Directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in these consolidated financial statements. The
Directors are of the opinion that deposits are made to credit worthy

parties and do not expect non-performance of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2017, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$351,622,000 (2016: HK$263,006,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidiity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions
of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of intemnal resources and bank

borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and long-term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure of the
overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group. The
Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and committed
banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to
meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. As at 30th June 2017, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$480,851,000 (201é:
HK$531,529,000) of which HK$351,622,000 (2016: HK$263,006,000)
was being utilised by the Group.

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and net-
settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flow, including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity
analysis, the maturity date of bank borrowings with a repayable on
demand clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in
the loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand clauses.
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the Directors
do not consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the

scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HFEUMBHRRMEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) BB EREE (&)
(e)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) HBELERE)
Within ~ Between | Between 2
| year and2years and5 years Total
—-fR —EWEAN MELIFRA b
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TER TER TERr
At 30th June 2017 RZE—tFA=1H
Trade and bills payables BHRNTRENRE 88,513 — — 88,513
Other payables and accruals HitteN R RERER 21,156 — — 21,156
Bank borrowings RITEE 332,924 693 = 333,617
Total ] 442,593 693 — 443,286
Within ~ Between | Between 2
['year and2years and5 years Total
—FN —ZEZMEAN MERFA k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT TET FET
At 30th June 2016 RZZE—R"E-RA=1H
Trade payables BHEMNR 72,875 — I 72,875
Other payables and accruals HitreN R RERER 16,220 = T 16,220
Bank borrowings RITEHE 281,404 642 + 282,046
Total ] 370,499 642 = 371,141
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREE@S)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 BEEBEREE)
(e)  Liguidity risk (Continued) () mBELEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial liabilities TRERAEENAEESE
that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings HENTEERAE  BR
based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the HEENIEAER - REHE
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are EBERBZESRIEAN
the contractual undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates FIhERETON - ERA
prevailing at the balance sheet date. RENSEARCHANS
RARER ULREREER
RO EANERREY -
Within Between | Between 2
| year and2years and 5 years Total
-5 —EZMFR WELFA nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T&RT T TERx TE&T
At 30th June 2017 RZZ—+F A=+H
Currency forward contract EBRBEH
— Outflow —INR 46,260 26,985 — 73,245
— Inflow —RA (46,500) (27,125) — (73,625)
Total Bz (240) (140) — (380)
At 30th June 2016 RZE-RFARA=1H
Currency forward contract BERERBEH
— Outflow —5NR 262,650 15450 — 278,100
— Inflow —mA (263,500) (15,500) — (279,000)
Total ] (850) (50) — (900)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to

shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”,

as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June 2017
and 2016:

SRR

3 MEERBEESE)

32 BEXEREE
TEBNESERRE 2REA
EEBELE  ARERED
BN BEESHE ARG -
AE &R RENEAERURER
SRA o

AEEEREARE  WRIREE
MEEEHLRE - BTHFR
BARGRE  AREARERE
X FRREREHE « BITHK
JEFHMORITER -

o

1

& il

£
&

AEENAABLREREEN
Je b R IR IR B F R R DA BB ARGt
B BHEFEABEERERER
Rtk REARRMER (kR
BEERBERMI)IMEHFE -

R-E—tER_Z-—RErH
=tR FREZABELENT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Total borrowings (Note 28) BEE (K 28) 331,830 280,843
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 24) A Re KR emaR (i 24) (105,947) (73,821)
Net debt (EG £ 225,883 207,022
Total equity Bgm 483,197 455,721

Total capital Bk 709,080 662,743
Gearing ratio BEXRBRLE 32% 31%

There was no material change of the gearing ratio during the year as the

Group closely monitors the overall capital structure.

FEBTIERERERGEE B
WA AR S EL R B E
KEB -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the balance sheet
at fair value are required to disclose the fair value measurements by level of

the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1)

J Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and deposits and
other receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including
current borrowings, trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals

approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the

Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level .
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SRR

BEEREE &)
33 AREEGH(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in level 3.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level 2 fair

value hierarchy classifications.

As at 30th June 2017, the Group's available-for-sale financial asset and
derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial instruments.
Disclosures relating to investment properties that are measured at fair value

are set out in Note 7.

As at 30th June 2017, the fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group performed the valuation of the available-for-sales financial asset by the
use of discounted cash flow model based on the market conditions existed
at balance sheet date and business forecast provided by management.
Specific valuation technique used to value the derivative financial instruments
includes using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date to discount
back to the present value. The key unobservable data includes the interbank

forward exchange rate and the volatility of forward exchange rate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year

ended 30th June 2017.

HHEREEE)

33 AREEGH(E)
TRETBE_Z—LF/ A=1
AEEEFE3ESRTANE

Available-for- Derivative
sale financial financial

asset instruments

AHEE fTE Total
MEEE ¢RIA g

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR T T

Opening balance HIAER 2,000 (584) 1,416
Settlements w8 — (1,862) (1,862)
Gains recognised in profit and loss HERAER U — 2,417 2,417
Closing balance Bk i eh 2,000 (29) 1,971
Total gains for the year included in profit or FREANEBENFE

loss for liabilities held at the end of the year, £z @+ BEEBERA

under “other gains/(losses), net” [Efbis,

(B1]) —F& ]+ — 2417 2417

Changes in unrealised losses for ERGRTHEIANEE

the year included in profit or loss ARERELNEE

at the end of the year — (29) (29)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.4

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year

ended 30th June 2016.

SRR

H¥EREEE)

33 AREEGH(E)
ATRRBE_Z-—R"ERA=T
ALEFEAFIESRTANE

xo
Available-for- Derivative
sale financial financial
asset instruments
A E e Total
BHBEE SWMIA ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THEL
Opening balance HIAER 2,000 (14,443) (12,443)
Settlement &8 - 27,205 27,205
Losses recognised in profit and loss HERAERNIEL — (13,358) (13,358)
Currency translation differences B ER — 12 12
Closing balance S 2,000 (584) 1416
Total losses for the year included in profit or ~ FEBEMBENFE
loss for liabilities held at the end of the year, ~ #1B% - BIEEBRERA
under “other gains/(losses), net” [Etlas,/
(1) — %8P . (13358) (13358)
Changes in unrealised losses for ERRRTHEIANEE
the year included in profit or loss REBRBINE
at the end of the year i (584) (584)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

As at 30th June 2017 and 2016, there were no financial assets or financial

liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting or

similar agreements.

34 HHEHBEENERE
RZE—tERZT—"FAA
=18 UEEMHMBEESN
BEHEE  TRTAEETHNE
P a AR -
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e BHRRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

@

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from use of these assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

®)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.

These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income

statement.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

@

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on the basis
of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current leases based on the
capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This methodology is based
upon estimates of future results and a set of assumptions as to income and
expenses of the property and future economic conditions. Details of the

judgement and assumptions have been disclosed in Note 17.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables (including deposits
made) based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. Provisions are made where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible.
The identification of impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of the receivables and
impairment is recognised or reversed in the period in which such estimate

has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(¢

@

Wiite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories
are recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories is recognised in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences or
tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such

estimates have been changed.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

sk oBEH

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL

Revenue EEH
Sales of goods HEEMm 1,577,965 1,503,199
Provision of logistic services R RS 2,364 2,864
1,580,329 | 506,063

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the business from the
operations nature and the type of products perspective, including the trading of
plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering
plastic products (“Engineering plastics™) and other corporate and business activities,

including the provision of logistic services (“Others”).

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions are
entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also
be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the CODM is

measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of revenue and operating profit, which is in a manner consistent with that

of the consolidated financial statements.
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SRR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WKEkpHERE)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_T—tF A=THILEFERHE
the year ended 30th June 2017 is as follows: RERRERREZRZIBRENDE
=3 U
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 E0E IREH Hity XEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER TER
Tumover BT
— Gross revenue —DEBHE 1,124,448 319,604 199,208 2396 1,645,656
~ Inter-segment revenue —-HEREEE (60,760) (3,985) (559) (23) (65,327)
Revenue from extemal customers  JMEBE P Uias 1,063,688 315,619 198,649 2373 1,580,329
Segment results NEEE 6,029 39,040 17,616 (3,520) 59,165
Finance income Il 817 496 237 = 1,550
Finance costs BER (8,556) (1,235) (1,012) (337) (11,140)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrEiAT(B518) s Fl (1,710) 38,301 16,841 (3,857) 49,575
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eV BRRM T

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER )
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_T—t+FA=ZTHILLFERH
the year ended 30th June 2017 is as follows: (Continued) RERRERREZAZIRENHE
RIT - (&)
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% g0l IRER Hith X&EE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T#T T TERT T
Other information: HinEH -
Additions to non-current assets FEmBEELM
(other than financial instruments (KRemIAR
and deferred tax assets) BRETIEEEN) 1,023 13,600 7334 264 2,221
Depreciation of property, Mmx - BB RRE
plant and equipment e 688 5,542 7,849 531 14,610
Amortisation of leasehold landand ~ FHE L Je -1
land use rights fEREzEH 361 225 2 78 696
(Reversal of)/provision for FERERER),/
impairment of inventories, net 38 (1,329) 399 141 (18) (807)
(Reversal of)/provision for B HRMORE
impairment of trade (), %
receivables, net — %8 (5) 53 = 222 270
Provision for impairment of H fth e RO (B 2 4
other receivables — — — 2,566 2,566
Reversal of impairment of deposit U #E¥% 2
for acquisition of properties ReRERER — (8218) — — (8,218)
Provision for impairment of mE - BE R
property, plant and equipment RERELERE — — - 227 227
Fair value gains on derivative fTEEMIA
financial instruments, net ARBEFERMN (2,417) — — — (2,417)
Fair value gains on RENELABE
investment properties il (322) (793) — (4,730) (5,845)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as
at 30th June 2017 is as follows:

HEMBRRME
KR EER ()

RIB—+ERA=ZTHRELERER
BRREZAZIBREDBERT

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EGE IRER Hitr AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET TET FET
Segment assets NEEE 379,700 293,466 159,016 120,831 953,013
Total assets BEE 953,013
Segment liabilities AHEE (83,700) (29,688) (19,288 (53100  (137,986)
Borrowings =3 (264,877) (22,989) (37,005) (6959)  (331,830)
Total liabilities Baf (348,577 (52,677 (56,293) (12269)  (469,816)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 WaEKRIHER#E)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_ZT-—R"E A=-THILEFERHE
the year ended 30th June 2016 is as follows: RERRERREZAZIRENHE
23Ul
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
25 EGH  IiBH Hit A&HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET TET
Tumover S
— Gross revenue —DEPBHE 1,046,494 343969 183,686 2925 | 577,074
— Inter-segment revenue —HEREEE (65,300) (3.738) (1918) (55) (71011)
Revenue from extemal customers  JMEBE P Uias 981,194 340,231 181,768 2,870 1,506,063
Segment results AEEE (43,130) 35,194 8,403 (5.002) (4,535)
Finance income g6 1,124 143 298 — 1,565
Finance costs HBEER (8.279) (1,485) (1,003) (331 (11,098)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BHEAT(E18),aFl (50,285) 33852 7,698 (5.333) (14,068)
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SRR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER )
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_ZT-—R"E A=THLEFERHE
the year ended 30th June 2016 is as follows: (Continued) RERRERREZRZIBRENDE

BT : (&)

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
2% EEH  IiREN At KEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TET TR TR TRT

Other information: HinEH} -

Additions to non-current assets FRBEEEM

(other than financial instruments (RemIAR

and deferred tax assets) BRETRIEEEN) 192 2930 5,074 106 8,302
Depreciation of property, ER S

plant and equipment e 744 5934 10990 726 18,394
Amortisation of leasehold MET Rt

land and land use rights EREzEH 381 276 Ey) 78 767
Provision for/(reversal of) BERBEEE/

impairment of inventories, net (Bm) — %8 3292 (1,155) (117) ) 2016
(Reversal of)/provision for B HRMNRE

impairment of trade (Bm),/ %

receivables, net — %8 (142) 29 = 513 400
Fair value losses on derivative PTEERMIA

financial instruments, net ArBEFEER 13,358 = = T 13,358
Fair value losses/(gains) RENELRAR

on investment properties BEBRE,/ &) 212 = = (1,950) (1,738)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as

at 30th June 2016 is as follows:

5

Colorants

EEH

HK$'000

TR

KR EER ()
RIB-REAAZTHRELERER
BRREZAZIBREDBERIT

Engineering
plastics Others Group
Ti2%H At &

HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAL

Segment assets

276975

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Borrowings

(29,119)
(24,306)

135,495 119,321 847,339

847,339
(10.835) (3045 (110775
(28,140) (7829)  (280.843)

Total liabilities

(53425)

(38975) (10874)  (391618)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers from
Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2017 is approximately HK$703,304,000
(2016: HK$637,372,000), and the total of its revenue from external customers
from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$877,025,000 (2016:

HK$868,691,000).

At 30th June 2017, the total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately HK$ 160,722,000
(2016: HK$153,244,000), and the total of these non-current assets located
in other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$107,951,000 (2016:

HK$94,714,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR
RENTAL INCOME 6 HEWA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRER TRT
Rental income HElA 6,503 5,594
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income AELHERANKRENEZHER
amounted to approximately HK$224,000 (2016: HK$208,000). ¥ EEN22400F T(ZT— R EF:

208,000 7T) °

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7 Httis(F8) - 38
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Fair value gains on investment REMEN DA BER R
properties (Note 17) (F5E17) 5,845 1,738
Fair value gains/(losses) on forward foreign HIEEERBZINERBAH
exchange contracts held for trading, net ARABEFERN/(BE) 2,417 (13,358)
Reversal of impairment of deposit for WEEME 2 e RERR (3 (a))
acquisition of properties (Note (a)) 8218 =
Government grant (Note (b)) BRI (KI5 (b)) 830 -
Net exchange losses SNEEIE T (184) (1,433)
17,126 (13,053)
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7

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET (Continuea)

Notes:

@

(®)

During the year ended 30th June 2007, the Group paid a deposit of RMB7,150,000
(approximately HK$8,218,000) for the acquisition of certain properties in the PRC, in which
the deposit paid represents the value of the building portion of the properties. However,
the transaction has not been completed for years as defects in certain title documents are
yet to be rectified despite continuous efforts had been made to obtain those documents.
During the year ended 30th June 2013, the management concluded that there were
significant uncertainties over the recoverability of the deposit as a result, a full provision was

made on the deposit.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, the Group has obtained the property right certificate
of the foresaid properties. Accordingly, the impairment of the deposit of RMB7,150,000

(approximately HK$8,218,000) was reversed to consolidated income statement.

Pursuant to the PRC local government policies, the Group obtained RMB722,000
(approximately HK$830,000) (2016: Nil) cash from the PRC local government authorities

for the operation in certain PRC regions with no special conditions attached.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RMEBEEIZAX
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Cost of inventories sold excluding manufacturing costs HEFEXNRN(TEEEEKR) 1,283,753 1,234,787
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights (Note 16) & 1 Jz & #i {55 FRE#E 85 (P &t 16) 696 767
Auditor's remuneration e e
— Audit services —RE IR 2,192 2,526
~ Non-audit services — IR BR T 536 599
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BEREETE 14,610 18,394
Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net BHRIFUREER - F8 270 400
Provision for impairment of other receivables (Note) Hfth el FOR (B 2 (PR o) 2,566 N
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of inventories, net BERE(RR) & 558 (807) 2016
Provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment mE - BERREREERE 227 =
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment LEME - BERSEZER/ (WE) 123 (165)
Employee benefit expenses, including Directors' EERMX L (BREESHE)
emoluments (Note |3) (5T 13) 126,800 128,750
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings T REF RERERS 7,755 8,254
Repairs and maintenance expenses BERRERX 3,889 4,127
Transportation and packaging expenses BHRBERY 26,601 26,935
Travelling and office expenses EREBRERZ 9,624 10,129
Utility expenses KERX 15,207 15,200
Other expenses Hith & 50,751 50,420
Total cost of sales, distribution costs and HEKA - DA RITR
administrative expenses puk k] 1,544,793 1,503,139
Representing: R&:
Cost of sales HEKA 1,362,805 1318513
Distribution costs 7 HAA 76,572 79,744
Administrative expenses TH i 105,416 104,882
1,544,793 1,503,139
Note: (i
During the year ended 30th June 2017, one subsidiary under “Others” segment ceased its business REE-T—tF A=1H  EE£i]
operation. The Directors are in the opinion that the other receivables from its business operation %%BZ*§M¢J§QEE%H1$H\W¥ - &S
cannot be recovered. Accordingly, provision for impairment of other receivables of HK$2,566,000 SR INGIPAY & G e K]
was charged to administrative expenses. 2,566,000 87T 2 E it UGB EXEE B AT
XA HIER o
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9  FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

9 HMEBEUENER

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR

Finance income: B sl 25
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITHEFRFBHA 582 233
— Net exchange gains on financing activities —REEB 2 IVERERFE 968 1332
1,550 1,565

Finance costs: HBER
— Interest on bank borrowings —RITEEZH B (11,140) (11,098)
Finance costs, net MEER-F8 (9,590) (9,533)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's subsidiaries

established and operate in the PRC has been calculated on the estimated assessable

profit for the year at the rate of 25% (2016: 25%).

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement

10 BEXH

BRNGHRILREF AL ERTUER
BEEED 2t ABR(ZE—REF:
BOZTAHA)ERE - PERE

TR B AR S ER A BRI K

2B

RAZAFREBHERBENRED 2
“HR(ZFE-AFAAZ-TRIZ

BEEE -

BAWAERZBAXHA |

represents:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Current income tax: AEFRA -
Hong Kong profits tax BBEMEH 1,606 1,875
PRC corporate income tax BB RMEH 9,926 9,359
PRC withholding tax on dividend income AR B E & B R RAER
(Note 34(e)) (PHEE34(e)) — 219
Under/(over) -provision in previous years NEFEERETE/(BERHE) 155 (248)
11,687 ['1,205
Deferred income tax (Note 29) EERE (HI7E29) 1,103 92
12,790 11,297
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SRR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows:

10 BUEXIL (&)

REBABRHIET/(BR) 2 HE
BEERAEEAEH HEMTE

EmhEsERMT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREATEF(BB) 49,575 (14,068)
Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% BRE165%(ZF—RF 1 165%)

(2016: 16.5%) AEZHIE 8,180 2,321
Effect of different tax rates in the PRC TETRREzFE 5,041 2,037
Income not subject to tax EARD A (3,557) (1,752)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes OGIE i1k s 930 1,829
Tax losses not recognised ABRZRBER 3,840 10,202
Utilisation of previous unrecognised tax losses FRRAERNBSEE (1,405) (50)
Under/(over) -provision in previous years NEFERETR/(BERE) 155 (248)
Write off of deferred income tax asset previously recognised £ A 2 A RIELETR B & E#H — 1,047
Reversal of temporary differences that previously recognised BT E R E 1 = 280 — 85
PRC withholding tax on dividend income AR B a4 i B TR IR A A — 219
Others it (394) 249

12,790 11,297
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e BHRRME

Il DIVIDENDS

I RE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL

Interim, paid, of HK1.0 cent (2016: Nil)

Bk HARR S A A 1.0 781

per ordinary share (Z2—RF &) 3,692 —

Final, proposed, of HK2.0 cents (2016: Nil) BRI EER
per ordinary share ERB20BI(ZF—RF : &) 7,384 —
11,076 —

Notes: BsE
(@) On 25th February 2016, the Directors resolved not to declare any interim dividend for the (a)
six months ended 31st December 2015.
(b)  On 27th September 2016, the Directors resolved not to declare any final dividend for the (b)
year ended 30th June 2016.
(0) On 27th February 2017, the Directors declared an interim dividend of HKI.0 cent per (0)
share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 3Ist December 2016, which was
paid during the year ended 30th June 2017.
(d)  On 28th September 2017, the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per (d)

share, totalling HK$7,384,000. This proposed dividend was not reflected as a dividend

payable in these financial statements and will be reflected as an appropriation of retained

eamnings for the year ending 30th June 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12
Basic

Basic eamings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable

to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

HEMBHRRM:E
SREFN/ (FR)

-
FREARMN/(BR)HRARRRE
wEF/ (BRBAFREETERR
ZIEFHHER -

2017 2016

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of RRIRREIER, (&)
the Company (HK$'000) (F#&T) 34,430 (26492)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FREBETERR METFIH 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents per share) BREARF,/ (E1E) (BREN) 9.33 (7.18)

Diluted

Dilutive earings/(loss) per share for the years ended 30th June 2017 and 2016
equal basic earnings/(loss) per share as there was no dilutive potential ordinary
share as at the years ended 30th June 2017 and 2016.

#%
RZB—+tFRA=ZTHRZE—R%F
~NA=t+H: ZK"?EEE%T*%WZ
L@k I&t REBEEZZ—tFXA
ZtRRZZE—RFARA :-I-EIJHW
FE - tHxEﬁ SRR/ (BR)EERE
REKRRBF,/(EE) -

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 13 EEREAXL(BREESME)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTY)
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Wages, salaries and other allowances T& - #of R H 2Rk 122,928 122,699
Pension costs RIRE R 3,872 6,05
126,800 128,750
There were no forfeited contributions (2016: Nil) utilised during the year ended RBE_Z—tE A=THLFE

30th June 2017 to reduce future contributions. As at 30th June 2017, contribution
totalling HK$342,000 (2016: HK$337,000) were payable.

W EE B EMBIMER(ZF—RF
&) cRZE—+ERA _‘|'E| 1 {;‘E%’yh\ﬁ
#342,000 L (ZF —/~F : 337,000/
T ARES A o
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14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 BEEZNRNERZREEEEAR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS A
(@)  Directors’ emoluments @ EFhz
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_T—tFR A=THLFE
ended 30th June 2017 is set out below: BuEEZMEWT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a

Director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FERES(TERALARENELR)
RUBBAAIEUNHE

Other
emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect

of Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management

of the affairs

of the company

or its subsidiary

Salaries, undertaking

other allowances Enployer's HERALT
and benefits contribution FHKELR
inkind  Discretonary 1o pension S 3

40 bonuses Housing scheme  HEZHE
Fees b2l BfTEE allowance ExY [BLE! Total

Name of Director EEp? e RENFIE A EERE2E BASZEZ EUNHe as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tén Tén Tén T T T

Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) AR (£ ) 1,620 2310 = = 18 = 3948
MrHUI Kok Kiwong SRR E 1,620 2310 = = 18 = 3948
DrWONG Chi Ying Anthony ETERT = 2546 = = 18 = 2,564
Madam LU Sau Lai BAERT = 1,787 = = 18 = 1,805
MrNG Chi Ming [EBEE = 1,765 = = 18 = 1,783
Mr HUI Yan Kuen (Note) FTABR (W) = %I 134 = 18 = 1,103
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SRR

14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 BEEZNRNERZREEEEAR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) ZME#)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEFEHz (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a

Director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FERES(TERALARENELR)
REREMXATELRHHE

Other
emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect

of Director's
other services
in connection
with the
management

of the affairs

of the company

or its subsidiary

Salaries, undertaking

other allowances Employer’s RERALT
and benefits contribution FHKELR
inkind Discretionary opension - R R

24/ bonuses Housing scheme EMEERH
Fees =01)-4:3 BfTEE allowance ExH [BLE! Total
Name of Director £ we  REMAG it EERY Bfrez#ty EhNHE 45
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR ThERn TAn Thn TR TR TR

Independent Non-Executive Directors BuFynEs

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fEFTE 20 = = = = = 20

Mr CHAN Dit Lung gL 150 = = = = = 150

Mr CHING YuLung FEE s 150 = = = = = 150

Tota 2% 3740 11,669 134 = 108 = 15651

Note: MieE -

Mr HUI Yan Kuen appointed as Director of the Company on |st January 2017. AFABRER-T—tF—A—AZR
AAREZES -
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14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 BEEZNRNERZREEEEAR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continved) ZME#)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEHz (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking
fEREZ(PERAAASANBAA)
RERBN XN LERDOHE

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company

s, or its subsidiary

oter undertaking

allowances RERALH

and benefits Employer’s SEMBAT

inkind Discretionary contribution to B

4R bonuses Housng ~ Pension scheme HEtESRE
Fees Hih 28 BITEE dlowance Exy [BYE] Total
Name of Director EE3u we  REWHG e REZE Rzt EhaBe 28
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
TAL ThL AL TEL ThEL TEL TEL

Executive Directors #HnEs

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) FREE(ER) 1,655 248 = = 30l = 4004
Mr HUI Kok Kiwang FEKLE 1,655 248 = = £l = 4204
Dr WONG Chi Ying Anthony ETEET = 2528 = = 28 = 2810
Mr LA Kam Wah (Note) PRELE(HE) = 1995 = 682 20 = 279
Madam LU Sau La BABLL - 1775 - - 169 - 1944
MrNG Chi Ming REALE - 1753 12 - 196 - 1961
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SRR

|4 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 ESEZAENREZRSEEEAS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) A kAC Y
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EFhz (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking
{EREZ(TERAAASANBAA)
RERBM XN ZERDOHE

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect

of Director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company
or its subsidiary

Salaries,
undertaking

allowances RERALH
and benefits Enmployer’s FEMELR
inkind Discretionary contribution to e i
W bonuses Housing pension scheme HEthESRE
Fees Hth28 BITEE dlowance Exy [BYE] Total

Name of Director ESitS we  REDHE gyl FERH RIeZER  EANH: et
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T T ThL THL Thr Th

other

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUnnES

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fEsxE 200 = = = = = 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung Rk 150 = = = = = 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung s 150 = = = = = 150
Totdl 2% 3810 12547 2 68 1451 = 18502
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@

®)

©

@

(©

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Note:

Mr LAl Kam Wah resigned as Director of the Company on | Ith June 2016.

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2016: Nil). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office

during the year (2016: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors during

the year (2016: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the termination of

the appointment during the year (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to or received by third parties for making available
directors’ services
No payment was made to any third parties making available the services of

them as a Director of the Company (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,

controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such Directors

during the year (2016: Nil).
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|4 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@

©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts (7

Saved as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals ()
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include four (2016: four) Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable

to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

SRR

14 EBEEZHRNEEREEEEAS
pd AL ),

EFAERS  ZHARRHEX
B
BRTEMERNEEZR I K
FENREER - ARR|LERET
EAS RAREZ ZHEMARELZ
EFHRIAREETRAEAE
HeBERY  RHRAR(ZE
—NEE) o

LEREHMAL

AEER ERANERFTMAL
f o (ZF—RF WA RE
Z HEMESER EXEFZAHTH
BE Il HFMALR

R HMERT
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind B - He R REDHE 2,406 2,370
Discretionary bonus MIBIEA 150 244
Pension costs BIREKA 18 264
2,574 2,878
The emoluments fell within the following bands: WEFBE TFASSBEN:
Number of individuals
AE
2017 2016
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) HERE (BT)
HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000 % 75 I —
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000 47T 4 5

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of any office in connection with the
management of the affair of the Company and its subsidiaries during the year
(2016: same).

AEBTER ERAL(BRES
REAMEE) B & fEARE M
AREBRERLZHE(CE
—NEE) o
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I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 9% BERRE
Fumiture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold ~ Machinery and office
bulldings  improvements and  equipment Motor ~ Toolsand  Construction
BELTH HE  equpment RER vehicles moulds i progress Total
REgT DKL BELRE BAERG nE IAREA ERIR o
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
Tér  TEr  TERT  TEr  TExr TR TET  TExn
At It uly 2015 RZT-1%
tA-H
Cost A 125408 43647 192,868 20,209 7987 2418 1,755 394292
Accumulated depreciation ZHME (41,063) (30117)  (165176) (17.070) (6,728) (1,4%) - (261,650)
Net book amount REFE 84,345 13530 27692 3139 259 0 1,755 132642

Year ended 30th June 2016 HEZZ—1F
NAZTHLESFE

Opening net book amount HOREFE 84345 13530 277692 3139 1259 m 1,755 132642
Addtions ) = 2499 5,787 486 829 - - 9401
Transfer from construction PERIREA
in progress - 1755 - - - - (1,755) -
Transfer between categories PEAER - = 19 (19 = = =
Disposals ik - - = o) - - - )
Deprediation e (2783) (7695) (6134) (1,074) (602) (106) — (1839%4)
Currency translation diferences ~ E X ZH (4.063) (255) (1159) (94) (72) 29 - (5672)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 77499 9,834 2605 2433 | 414 787 - 18I0
At 30th June 2016 RIZ—RF
~A=TA
Cost B 119,140 4741 183,509 18,341 8420 230 — I8N
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (4lg4l)  (37407)  (157304)  (15908) (7.008) (1535) — (260801
Net book amount REFE 77499 9834 26205 2433 | 414 787 = 118,72
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GA IS ERM
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 % BERRE@)
Fumiture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold ~ Machinery and office
buldings  improvements and  equipment Motor ~ Toolsand  Construction
BELTH HE  equpment RER vehicles moulds i progress Total
kBT WERE BERRE BOAZRE nE IAREE ERIRE e
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TR TAL TEL TEL TAL TEL AR THIL
Year ended 30th June 2017 BE-E—tF
AR=TRILFE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 71499 9,834 26,205 2433 1414 787 - 118,172
Additons il - 935 4440 1,197 9| 40 - 15,524
Revaluation gain of property, nF BEREE
plant and equipment on BRERA
transfer to investment MEEL
properties Wz 363 - - - - - - 363
Transfer to investment properties X & F &t (820) - - - - - - (820)
Disposals e — (192) (19) (1) - = - ()
Impairment e - ) (201) (1) - - - (227)
Depreciation e (2701) (4234) (6,080) (958) (93 (%4) - (14610)
Currency translation differences B X Z 8 (18) (38) (184) 3) () () = (767)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 7383 14721 24161 2626 1,351 730 = 117412
At 30th June 2017 RZT—+F
~A=TH
Cost B 117523 53657 185,667 19,131 8318 2348 — 386,644
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (43700) (38931)  (161,305) (l6484) (6967) (1618) - (269,005)
Impaiment Wi — ) (201) ) - - — Q)
Net book amount REFE 73803 14721 2416l 2626 1351 730 - [17412
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I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$ 11,478,000 (2016: HK$14,752,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$280,000 (2016: HK$319,000) in distribution costs and
HK$2,852,000 (2016: HK$3,323,000) in administrative expenses.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, two subsidiaries under “Others” segment
ceased their business operation. The Directors are in the opinion that the property,
plant and equipment of these subsidiaries cannot be recovered. Accordingly,
provision for impairment for property, plant and equipment of HK$227,000 was

charged to cost of sales.

Provision of reinstatement costs for factory premises of HK$907,000 (2016: Nil)

was included in additions of leasehold improvements for the year.

As at 30th June 2017, the net book amount of property, plant and equipment
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$41,685,000 (2016: HK$43,322,000).
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e BHRRME

ME - RERREE)

FEER 4780008 L(ZF—~F
147520008 T ) E R EEHEKA
280,000/ 7L(=Z T — X F : 319,000/
L) B BT S $H A AR ) 2,852,000 T
(ZF—N%F 133230008 L)EBEE
TR ©

EAEM: —tERAZTHLEFE
?%HE@JMBZEMMTE@T
UEHHEEE - EERAZRENE
7?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ2¢%¥ B RFEE TR
[ - FtA £2270008 T2 ME  BE
REBREEBERBEER AT ME -

TIREEY 2 BB AR ER£907,0008
T ZE—RF: E)ERFRNREEH
ERENEEET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR
|6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS l6 MELMRTHERE
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid AEERNEEL R T MERE ER
operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows: REBALEHENE - HREFED
T

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

At beginning of the year F17 22,397 21,510

Addition 20 — 3,097

Transfer to investment properties REMEEL (2,951) s
Amortisation B (696) (767)
Currency translation differences BN AR (219) (1,443)

At end of the year FR 18,531 22397
As at 30th June 2017, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights RZE—tF A=+H HELTHR
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately < 3 0 PR BR [ % {8 4 3,200,000 78 7T
HK$3,200,000 (2016: HK$3,340,000). (ZF—7RF 133400008 0) EE AT

R1T RAEERERITEE -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERr TET

At beginning of the year F1 106,050 105,075

Addition & m 4014 a

Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 7) REME 2 A BENKER(EE7) 5,845 1,738

Transfer from property, plant and equipment MmE - BERREEA 820 —

Transfer from deposit for acquisition of properties WEME RSB 8218 —

Transfer from leasehold land and land use rights HE T 1 i AR A 2,951 —
Currency translation differences BHER (97) (763)

At end of the year FR 127,801 106,050
As at 30th June 2017, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation for BE-ZT—+F-A=1+H r5EE
future repair and maintenance (2016: Nil). i — P RETNRERBEN SRS

(ZF—RF: §)
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e BHRRME

|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)  Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was

performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates, to determine the fair

value of the investment properties as at 30th June 2017 and 2016. The

revaluation gains or losses are included in “other gains/(losses), net” (Note

7) in the consolidated income statement. The following table analyses the

investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

17

REYX (&)

@) AL EERE
$Elmhémimﬁf 817
RZE—LFNZZT-REAX
_+Hﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬁ NETHEA

nBE - ZEfkaRERaELER
AlEEMI Ak (BE) -
FRIF(HET)  TERMAMEE
EOMBRRABEARNREN
%,

Fair value
measurements
at 30th June
2017 using significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
R-Z-+tfF
AA=+H
MAERHAA
LS N (e
NAREEE
(%38)
HK$'000
TER

Recurring fair value measurements

Investment properties:

— Industrial building units - Hong Kong
— Car park units - Hong Kong
— Commerecial office units and apartment - PRC

— Industrial building units - PRC

REMERA(EETE

BREME
—I¥REEN &S
—FEL-FH
~BEBLREN-HE
~I¥REBN—FEF

100,500
2,600
8,724

15,977

127,801
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

SRR

REY= (&)
(a) LA BEFEE)
Fair value
measurements
at 30th June

2016 using significant

unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
RIB—RF
~A=tAH
MABKHAA
ERBAEL
WRfBERE
(#3[)
HK$'000
THRT
Recurring fair value measurements REMLREBETE
Investment properties: REW%E -
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —IXKEEN-FE 95,900
— Car park units - Hong Kong —FBi - 1,650
— Commercial office units and apartment - PRC —HERAEEN - 8,500
106,050
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair AEENBR AN EHERNE
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances HRBERNENEY  ERARA
that caused the transfer. BEER 2 FHEE -
There were no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year. RENTES| - E2REIER[D
LS
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|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWNE#E)
(@) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) @) ArEEREE)
The following table presents the changes in investment properties with fair TRETREEZE_Z—tFRH
value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the ST REFEAMAEANATEE
year ended 30th June 2017. BANRAABETE(FEIE)NR
BMEEE
2017
PRC Hong Kong Total
R & BE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TER
Opening balance s 8,500 97,550 106,050
Addition 2 4014 — 4014
Transfer from deposit for acquisition WEMEZREBA
of properties 8218 — 8218
Net gain from fair value adjustment AREBEABRNGEE 115 4,730 5,845
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% + BB R HEEA = 820 820
Transfer from leasehold land and land use rights & 1-3tb [ + #{&F F i 88 A 2,951 = 2,951
Currency translation differences bE X HE (97) = (97)
Closing balance BRI G 24,701 103,100 127,801
Total gains and changes in unrealised gains FARGRERRER KR
for the year included in the consolidated 28 BREGEKER
income statement, under other Ml s/ (B8)
gains/(losses), net — %8 P I,I5 4,730 5,845
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e MBHRRMEE
7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 RENESE)
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (@) ArEEFEE)
2016
PRC Hong Kong Total
a3 EE ok
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

TET THET THET

Opening balance EIREES 9,475 95,600 105,075
Net gain from fair value adjustment DRBEFHBRWRGEHE 212) 1,950 1,738
Currency translation differences B ER (763) = (763)
Closing balance S 8,500 97,550 106,050
Total net gains and changes in unrealised FRW R FREIARER W a

gains for the year included in the ®BE  AELGERERD

consolidated income statement, [Efiiz/ (BE)

under other gains/(losses), net — %8 F (212) 1,950 1,738
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|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

®)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at HK$127,801,000
(2016: HK$106,050,000) as at 30th June 2017 and 2016 by Chung, Chan
& Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in
the locations and segments of the investment properties valued. Certain of
the investment properties are leased to third parties under operating lease
arrangements, further summary details of which are included in Note 17(e)

to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The finance department
reports directly to the CODM. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the CODM, finance department and the independent

valuer annually.
At each financial year end the finance department:

0 Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

J Assesses property valuations movements when compared to the

prior year valuation report; and
0 Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date between

the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REW=#E)
(c)  Valuation technigues (© 1ERM
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs AIEEDNCREIE 23PN sl
DREEFTE
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally determined FEBNREMEAABE—K
using the income capitalisation method which largely involves the use of REBWEEGE  EAEEER
unobservable inputs and taking into account the significant adjustments on ATABREA  TERERE
passing rentals of the current leases and capitalisation rates including the MENRKRHESRESHEBERX
outgoings (“Yields"). These significant unobservable inputs include: MEREE ([28%] ) HE
RBE - WEEAPABERBA
(K
Fair value
at 30th Relationship of
June 2017 unobservable inputs
R=B-t& Valuation ~ Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~AA=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs 0L 13 DN
it ZDREE fhERE FTRRAA AUBRR &R HAABRENBRE
HK$’000
TER
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 100500 Income  Unit passing rents HK$9.03 - HK$11.19 The higher the rental value,
TEAEEN-FE capitalisation  ERIRITEE  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method BYAREA0BT and vice versa
sk EILIEL  BEER AREEES
RZ TR
Yields 3.71% - 4.60% The higher the Yields,
L3¢ ¢ the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ERXER  DABESE

R

Car park units — Hong Kong 2,600 Income  Unit passing rents HK$5,000 - HK$8,250 The higher the rental value,
[REf-FE capitalisation  EfIRERE per month per unit the higher the fair value,
method FENEA50008T and vice versa

Yeg % £82508T HESR  2rBEEER

2 TR

Yields 732% - 11.12% The higher the Yields,

Lg% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
LB RyE M EEME
2 T8
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|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REV=#E)
(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued) © I1EER(E)
Fair value
at 30th Relationship of
June 2017 unobservable inputs
RZE-t% Valuation  Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~E=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs FUBEEHA
fhad ZRAEE fhERfE FTRRHA OLE 25 PN HAABENBRE
HK$’ 000
TER
Commercial office units and 8,724 Income  Unit passing rents RMB68.52 - The higher the rental value,
apartment - PRC capitalisation  EfREH(E RMB97.79 per month the higher the fair value,
BERNEER - method per square meter and vice versa
Wigk BYHAKEA HEES MABESSE
6852 - 9779 AR RZ I
Yields 3.56% - 489% The higher the Yields,
ER¥ the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
ZEXHE PhBESE
R
Industrial building units - PRC 15977 Income  Unit passing rents RMB9.64 per month The higher the rental value,
IEAEBf -4 capitalisation  Ef SRR H(E per square meter the higher the fair value,
method BYAREA and vice versa
Wog & 964 \RHE HELS  MEESR
R
Yields 998% The higher the Yields,

the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZERHS M EEWE
2 IR
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SRR

|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REW=#E)
(c)  Valuation technigues (Continued) (© 1HEEMNE)

Fair value

at 30th Relationship of

June 2016 unobservable inputs

RIZ—RE Valuation  Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABEEGA

it ZOREE fbERf  FTBEREA FEEEAGE HRABENER
HK$'000
TATL

Industrial building units - Hong Kong 95,900 Income Unit passing rents ~ HK$8.62 - HK$10.16 per The higher the rental value,

TEAEEM-FE capitalisation  EfIRRH(E month per square foot the higher the fair value,

method BYIRBAsLLET and vice versa

Wik Zi0leEn  HEER AREEER

R

Yields 3.72% - 4.38% The higher the Yields,

¥8% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

YREH5  AABELE

RZ TR

Car park units — Hong Kong 1,650 Income  Unit passing rents HK$8,000 per The higher the rental value,

B -F% capitalisation  Ef IR H(E month per unit the higher the fair value,

method HEMEAB000%ET and vice versa

Wig ik HELR  DrBEER

RZ A

Yields 11.64% The higher the Yields,

Lg% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ER%H5  AABELE

R

Commercial office units 8,500 Income  Unit passing rents  RMB64.64 - RMB96.91 per The higher the rental value,

and apartment - PRC capitalisation  EAIRFAE  month per square meter the higher the fair value,

BERNZEN—HE method FEHABR 6464 \RE and vice versa
Wik 29691 ANR¥ HEdS  ArEEES

2 A

Yields 352% - 498% The higher the Yields,

Lg% the lower the fair value,

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

and vice versa
SERURE AnEESE
Rz Mm%

FRMERMIL T
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|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(d)  As at 30th June 2017, the fair value of investment properties pledged
as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$31,414,000 (2016: HK$29,977,000).

(e)  The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

17

RENX @)

(@

()

R-ZZ—t& A=1R " KED
¥REFELD31,4140008 (=
T —XNF 129977,000% 0 ) B &
BYRIT RAKERERITE
o

RISTTHEOEERE - KAk
ERRREENT :

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TAET

Not later than one year —FR 5,857 2,846
Later than one year and not later than five years —FRENERAE 3,647 831
9,504 3,677
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SRR

18 B|EEE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr TET

Technical know-how Bl 08
Cost AR 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation AT (2,000 (2,000)
Accumulated impairment RERE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount REFE - i

During the vyears ended 30th June 2017 and 2016, the Directors assessed the

recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the carrying value

of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its future use and full

provision was made.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

REE-ZE-ARZBE—+FRA=ZT
HIEFER  EXEmARMAZRZA
KEEEYRREKAENATEERR
fERRIRE - E ke 2R

19 THEENKEE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

TRz THRT

At beginning of the year F17 2,000 2,000
Net gains transferred to equity LS e ol b — =
At the end of year FR 2,000 2,000

Available-for-sale financial asset represents a 3.6% (2016: 3.6%) equity interest

in an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is

denominated in HK dollar. None of the financial asset is impaired as at the year

end.

A HEMBEERRNERB R L&
Bk EMARZBN 2 =8R(Z
T—RNF APZ=HN)ER SR
ABTTREN -

Annual Report % £ # & 2016/2017 | 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

20 SUBSIDIARIES
The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2017 are disclosed in Note
34.

(@)  Matenal non-controlling interests
The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2017 was HK$23,065,000
(2016: HK$20,384,000), of which HK$24,505,000 (2016: HK$23,094,000) is
attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Materials Limited (“NHEPML").
The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries were not

material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of HK$2,186,000 (2016: HK$1,690,000)
were held in the PRC and were subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provided for restrictions on
exporting capital from the region, other than through normal dividends or

remittance of revenue income through import/export companies.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary

that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.
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SRR

20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 MEDRH)
(a)  Matenial non-controlling interests (Continued) (@) EBEAHHFRE (E)
Summarised balance sheet HEREREX
NHEPML
RETRER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Current ik
Assets BE 109,580 86,731
Liabilities B (55,164) (38,.837)
Current net assets FRBEE 54,416 47,894
Non-current R
Assets BE 48,967 49,324
Liabilities BfE (418) (183)
Non-current net assets FERBEE 48,549 49,141
Net assets FEE 102,965 97,035
Summanised income statement and statement of comprehensive income HEWmZRE K w7
NHEPML
REIRER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Revenue ez 199,207 183,684
Profit before income tax FR B AT A 16,535 9,163
Income tax expense HIEX H (3,076) (2,671)
Post-tax profit BRI 128 A 13,459 6,492
Other comprehensive income Hvéralias (169) (1,649)
Total comprehensive income Ralames 13,290 4,843
Total comprehensive income allocated FEBREERR
to non-controlling interests el 3,163 [,153
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest ST P IR 2 RS (1,752) (1,599)
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

20 MBEAEE)

(a)  Matenal non-controlling interests (Continued) (@) EBEAHHFRE (E)
Summarised cash flows BEHRERE K
NHEPML
RETRER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZHLR
Cash generated from operations REXBHEEZRE 9,493 25491
Income tax paid FriEH (1,923) (1,177)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBMELZFRE 7,570 24314
Net cash used in investing activities REXBMERZFR (7.379) (5,090)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities ~ BAE EBFTESE/(FR)2FHE 969 (22,981)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ~ RE&RBEFE M,/ (RD) 1,160 (3,757)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FNcHRekReEHE 2,859 6947
Currency translation differences = 9) (331)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZBe KR 2FH 4,010 2,859

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE
INVENTORIES 2l EFE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Trading stocks BEIEBEER 132,089 123,103
Raw materials Rt 80,315 69,996
Finished goods B 43,363 35472
255,767 228571
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in the NRE WA RAHE KA IRIER R H
consolidated income statement amounted to approximately HK$1,363,612,000 Y2 FEERAE LKA 1,363,612,00078
(2016: HK$1,316,497,000). TL(ZZ—RF : 1,316,497,00087T) °
Reversal of impairment of inventories amounted to HK$807,000 (2016: provision AEBEXREE 8070008 L(ZF
for impairment of HK$2,016,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the —NEOREEE20160008T) 2T
consolidated income statement. ERELEERE  YRGRERERANE
ERAR AR
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 ESRURKERRE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRT TERT
Trade receivables B 5 UK 236,285 222,098
Less: provision for impairment of receivables B EYCURE R (4,902) (4,738)
231,383 217,360
Bills receivable e 33,499 30,726
264,882 248,086
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

22

BZRURRERRE @)
BHRYGHREEN TS %RER

currencies:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
HKS$ BT 65,295 62,232
RMB AR 138,972 138713
UsD e 32,018 21,153
236,285 222,098

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the

Group has a large number of customers.

The majority of the Group’s sales were made with credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank's acceptance bill. The ageing

analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

BHREHR REERARABERD -

HARAEEREREZEFE  INE
HEERFTBEEBNET R -

ARERBOHHENEERRA=TE
n+avﬁ%uﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
FRET BEHRRTRERAZERR
QMMT:

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERr TET

Below 90 days 0-90 H 218,020 201,736
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 9,963 11,478
Over 180 days i 180 B 8,302 8,884
236,285 222,098

146 | AnnualReport % & # % 2016/2017



22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 30th June 2017, trade receivables of HK$40,461,000 (2016: HK$43,463,000)
were past due but not considered to be impaired. The credit quality of trade
receivables neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to
historical information about the counterparty default rates. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

22

SRR

ESRURRERRE &)
R-ZE—+t&XA=Z+H EHELX
40,461,000 70 (=T — 755 : 43,463,000
AL EEBHELRHNE - RS S
RENEFRURNEEEERERS
EZEMU AR ENREERETT
it WEFBEPRZEKMIABRE
HaBNBEIER - L5 E 5 RIH
BRECHITINT -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr THET

Past due by i A
| - 30 days [-30H 24,610 29,218
31 - 60 days 31-60 H 9,068 7,708
Over 60 days i@ 60 B 6,783 6,537
40,461 43,463

As of 30th June 2017, trade receivables of HK$4,902,000 (2016: HK$4,738,000)
were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$4,902,000 (2016:
HK$4,738,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate to a
number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult economic

situations. Majority of these trade receivables have been past due by more than

360 days (2016: 360 days).

RZZE—+t&XA=Z+H EHEEK
4,902,000 % 7T (ZZ —736 : 4,738,000 %8
T EESER49020008L(ZF—
4,738,000 )  ERIRENE 5E
Wk E BIR B B A TA A DA IME B W 452
RBURP o tZREKKAHME 8 H
HiB360H (=T —R"F : 3608)
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group is as

22

BIRURKRERES &)
TEEZESRAGUREREZSHMT :

follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
At beginning of the year =) 4,738 4,700
Provision for impairment REER 270 400
Write-off during the year AEE MR (80) (137)
Currency translation differences =R (26) (225)
At end of the year FX 4902 4,738

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

RUEBEzIBATRER—ENTH
A WATIEEREL -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

T FAT

HK$ BT 2,633 158
UsD ET — 456
RMB AR 30,866 30,112
33,499 30726

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is no

recent history of default on bills receivable.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank’s acceptance bills
amounting to approximately HK$ 18,566,000 (2016: HK$20,594,000) with recourse
in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2017. The transactions have been accounted

for as collateralised bank advances (Note 28).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying values of the receivables (2016: same). Other than the bank's acceptance
bills collateralised as bank advances, the Group does not hold any collateral as

security.
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SRR

23 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23 fT£EmIA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THERT
Held for trading, liabilities BHELE
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note) —INEEREE L (M) 29 584
Note: B st
Forward foreign exchange contracts INEEREIE A
As at 30th June 2017, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts mainly RZE—tFAA=+AH  AEBHERIBIN
to purchase USD (2016: purchase USD). The maximum notional principal amounts of these ERHENFEUNERT(ZT—REF: X
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 30th June were as follows: T e RAAZTARERTYINERDREH
ZRAREREENT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR
Sell HK$ for USD HEBTLAEART 148,200 561,600
24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24 BERBITESH
(a)  Cash and cash equivalents () HEREZEHE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TERT
Cash on hand Rekn 657 895
Bank balances SRITAGER 105,290 72926
105,947 73,821
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24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

@

®)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

24

RERBTHERAE)

(@)

HERHETFF (&)
ReRRTERATIEERE

fiI :

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
HK$ BT 13,578 7407
RMB AR 81,504 60,182
UsD T 10,699 6,021
Others Hith 166 211
105,947 73,821

Cash at bank eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit

rates.

The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$81,937,000 (2016:
HK$60,483,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions

imposed by the PRC government.

Restricted bank deposits

As at 30th June 2017, RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$22,989,000) (2016:
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,256,000)) are restricted deposits
held at bank as reserve for serving of debt for revolving loans provided by
the bank (Note 28). The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate
at 1.75% (2016: 1.75%) per annum with remaining maturity less than twelve

months after the balance sheet date.
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A TS RRM
25 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 5 EEEARREACR
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as follows: BORNRRENZERZERA ZRR
DA :
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TRT
Below 90 days 0-90 H 87,425 71,615
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 60 172
Over 180 days iR 180 B 1,028 1,088
88,513 72,875
The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair values, and are BEORNFRENEREZRAEREAR
denominated in the following currencies: ABERE @ WA THEBESEN
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz THRT
HK$ BT 3,321 4377
RMB ARE 33,369 22739
ush ETT 51,820 45,742
Others A s 3 17
88,513 72,875
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

26 BREARBRARE

Share capital Bx
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital
HK$0.10 each  nominal value
SREE RAHEE
0.108T2 HK$' 000
EBRYE FHET
Authorised: ETERA
At Ist July 2015, 30th June 2016, Ist july 20l6and ~ RZZE—RFtA—H  ZT—~F
30th June 2017 ANA=1tH  ZZ—X"F+A—H
RZZE—+FR A=TH 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRARRKRA -
At Ist July 2015, 30th June 2016, Istjuly 2016and ~ R=ZE—AF+tA—H  ZT—RF
30th June 2017 ~A=+R —E—~E+A-AHE
—Z—tFR A=+H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium BEEE
HK$’000
THER
At Ist July 2015, 30th June 2016, R—_F—HF+A—H —E-—AEAA=FH"
Ist July 2016 and 30th June 2017 2R FtA-BARk=E—tF~ A=t+H 62,466

152 | AnnualReport % & # % 2016/2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

27 RESERVES 27 it
Other reserves
Efbfs
Available-
Capital for-sale  Exchange
reserve financial asset  fluctuation
(Note)  Revaluation reserve reserve Retained
BRGE  reserve i BX  Subtotal  eamings Total
(W) EfiR% EERRE KERE Mt REER aE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§O000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000
TR Téx  TEr  TEn  TEx  TER  TEn
At IstJuly 2015 RZF-REtA-A 408 759 1310 7169 8477 3 9709
Loss for the year TEEE - - - = — 49 (%)
Currency translation differences EiZES - - - (31.781) (31781) = (31781)
Disposal of interests in subsidianes without MEYXAEHEONELDEREE
change of control (Note 35) (PisE35) 207 - = = 207 = 207
2014/2015 final dvidend paid FHZE-I/ZE-REERHRE - - - = = (369) (3692)
At 30th June 2016 RZB-RERAZTH 615 759 1310 40388 49903 286048 33591
At lst July 2016 RZB-"ELA-H 615 7590 1310 40,388 49903 286,048 35,95
Prof fo the year RERT - - = = = U480 3440
Currency translation differences EXZE - - - (4,186) (4,186) - (4186)
Revaluation gain of property, plant and equipment on n% BRRREEAZ
transfer to investment properties RANE EfFNE - 363 - - 363 - 363
Acquistion of interest in a subsidiary without i il ol NGl St
change of control (Note 35) (P335) 210) = = = 210) = (2120)
201612017 interim diidend paid IHZF-n/ - EERERE - - - = = (369 (3692)
At 30th June 2017 RZE-+E5A=1H (1,505) 7953 1310 36,202 4390 316,786 360,746
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27 RESERVES (Continued) 27 fRiE#E)

Note: Bt st

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TEL

Capital reserve from reorganisation (Note (a)) BRREEA (M @) 408 408
Changes of interests in subsidiaries without change of control PEHR LR RN B R RRRES

(Note (b)) (PR 3E (b)) (1,913) 207

(1,505) 615

(d)  The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the non-voting @ AEEAKGBNREZEERLSE
deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and the difference between the BAGIZERERETERHBERR
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate —hWhANEARAFBREEEEA(E
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group 4B )17 2 IR AR B LA S R M B B
reorganisation in 1994 (the “Reorganisation’). BAR BAEESERE Y 25 -

(b)  The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the change of ) HBHERRFEANBATRRES(R
interests in subsidiaries without change of control (Note 35). KEEEIE)MEENERNEEM
35)
28 BORROWINGS 8 HE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TRT
Bank loans due for repayment within FR—FABRIRITENR -
one year-secured (Note 3.1(e)) BEB(HE31(E) 109,047 107,366
Bank loans due for repayment after one year FR—FRERBEEESRERER
which contain a repayment on demand Xz BITER—
clause-secured (Note 3.1(e)) BEB(HE31(E) 667 626
Trust receipt loans due for repayment FR—FNEBEZEARBEER -
within one year-secured (Note 3.1(e)) BHEBHE3.1(e)) 194,292 142,102
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 22) FITHRERBHR(HFE22) 18,566 20,594
Bank overdrafts - secured RITEX - BER 9,258 10,155
331,830 280,843
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SRR
BORROWINGS (Continued) 28 fBEM#A)
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values AEEEECREER REEMR
as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's borrowings are A EU/(TWEMZ%EE
denominated in the following currencies:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET
HK$ BT 152,980 83,893
RMB ARE 78,754 71537
UsD XL 100,096 125413
331,830 280,843
At 30th June 2017, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable within RZZE—tFAA=TH AREHNR
five years. TEXEERLENER
The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan REENHBEERRERLENRXTE

agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

WEFGARRCEREESHENT -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Within | year —FR 331,163 280,217
Between | to 2 years —FEWMEF 667 626
331,830 280,843

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the weighted NEEBBRAANEE ZEFEH=RE

average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows: R R NETEF =M

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER BT
- at fixed rates — B A= 317,539 260,891
- at floating rates —FBHx 14,291 19,952
331,830 280,843
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29

28 BORROWINGS (Continued) 28 BE#E)
2017 2016
HK$ RMB usb HK$ RMB usb
BT AR in BT AR =V
Trust receipt loans ERBIEER 2.90% 5.22% 3.14% 261% — 263%
Short-term bank loans RERITER 2.78% 5.73% = 2.14% 639% —
Bank overdraft BITEX 5.00% 6.95% — 5.00% 6.95% —
Bank advances for discounted bills  $RITRAER RAZEK — 5.35% — - 377% -
Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 15), RITETUAREEHRINDE - HER
leasehold land and land use rights (Note 16), investment properties (Note 17), and REPNFE5) « AE L1 K+ (5 i
restricted bank deposits (Note 24 (b)) of the Group. (fiE16)  REME (P 17) R B
HRITIE AR (BTEE 24(b) ) AR
The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted for M ERE 2 BEREEIIB FIRITAE
as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank's acceptance bills and the RITBREINAERCRRITER - B
related proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills BERRRAUSHARTALERE
receivables (Note 22) and short-term borrowings respectively at the end of the REBZRBEMGERINEERAEE
reporting period. 2B HRUWH KR ERRE (M T22) k&
HIfEE -
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 EEBE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the

consolidated balance sheet:

ERETARTENSAENREER
BAERAEAGHYE BEEMERIR
Rl - H%E - AR RETHEREE
EEEEREE Bt ABREER
THEENEERBERANE :

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FTAT

Deferred income tax assets R IBEE 5,655 6,052
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMIEER (6,863) (6,151)
(1,208) (99)
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29 EEBEM)
The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows: BHELMEHREENFESHNAT -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
At beginning of the year F1 (99) 14
Charged to consolidated income statement (Note 10) TEERE W R MG (fI5E 10) (1,103) (92)
Currency translation differences EHEE (6) 1)
At end of the year FR (1,208) (99)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the vear, FREERBEERBECZE(HF—
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax B < & eREHAT) T -
jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred income tax liabilities: BELEHEARE
Fair value gains on Accelerated tax
investment properties depreciation Total
RENELABERE MEBH I E BE
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HK$O000
TEr TETL FEx  TET  FEAR @ TAR

At beginning of the year F4) 568 650 6,188 6,232 6,756 6,882
Charged/(credited) to EieRER

consolidated income statement %/ (GtA) 826 (30) 182 313 1,008 283
Currency translation differences X ZH ) (52) (52) (357) (59) (409)
At end of the year R 1,387 568 6,318 6,188 7,705 6,756

Annual Report 4 & # % 2016/2017 | 157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year,

without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction, are as follows: (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets:

REBR (&)

FRECHBEERAAEZEH(EF—
BBLR 2 AREHAMT : (&)

ERRRERE -

Decelerated tax

Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total

Ef hiER HERBRE “E
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$O00 HK$000 HK$O00
TEx TET FHEr TET TEx TET TFEx TAR
At beginning of the year F9) 3,839 4006 965 1,047 1,853 1,843 6,657 6,896

(Charged)/credited to consolidated ~ TE&R A MR

income statement (MB),/FA (40) 74 (365) 42) 310 159 (95) 191
Currency translation differences X EH (35) (241) () (40) (19) (149) (65) (430)
At end of the year FR 3,764 3839 589 965 2,144 1,853 6,497 6,657

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to

the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable

profits is probable. At 30th June 2017, the Group had unrecognised tax losses

to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted to approximately
HK$256,951,000 (2016: HK$242,401,000). These tax losses have no expiry date
except that approximately HK$8,788,000 (2016: HK$10,970,000) will expire
from 2018 to 2022 (2016: 2017 to 2021). The potential deferred income tax

assets in respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised amounted to

approximately HK$42,858,000 (2016: HK$40,929,000).

As at 30th June 2017, deferred income tax has not been provided for in the

consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable

to unremitted profits eared by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$201,123,000 (2016: HK$153,480,000) as the Group is able

to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

158 | Annual Report % £ # & 2016 /2017

REENHBBEENRROETAER
BEERRAB BB M A ae

BARKERBRBNERNIES - R
F—tFAA=+TH AEEXEHR
A 45 58 DA I 86 R R B AR T M 28 9 B 7
B 18 492569510008 (=T — R4 :
242,401,000 BT ) ERELE A EHEEL
42,858,000%8 7T (ZF — 754 : 40,929,000
BL) BHIE-NFE-T-__F(=
T—RF: T +tFET-F)F
HER B EELD 87880008 L(ZF
—7N4 110,970,000/ 7T) ©

R-ZE—+&XAZ+H KEFLX
HETHRNE QA ERIKERS
F$£49201,123000F T(Z T — R F -
153,480,000/ 7T ) 2 B I Z R IERIEH B
B AAREAEHZEERESEL
BEERE ARRARZERZELR
EEAETGRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

@

SRR

30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30 HRERERER
Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax to net cash generated from @) BEIRF (BB EEEREBE
operations: GHEHEX -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Profit/(loss) before income tax MangH,/ (&8) 49,575 (14,068)
Adjustments for: FERIFER -
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment —M% - BERRBHE 14,610 18,394
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —-HEVE  BERREZ
plant and equipment BB/ (W) 123 (165)
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights —HET R TP B 696 767
— Fair value changes on derivative financial —“RHEEBEITEERMIAL
instruments held for trading LREBEEE (555) (13,847)
— Fair value gains on investment properties ~REWEN AL BEKE (5,845) (1,738)
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net —B RN EER - F8E 270 400
— Provision for impairment of other receivables — B RKFOREES 2,566 -
— (Reversal of)/provision for impairment ~FEAERR), EH-F
of inventories, net (807) 2016
— Provision for impairment of property, W% - BERH&E
plant and equipment AR 227 i
— Reversal of impairment of deposit for — B R ZERERED
acquisition of properties (8,218) =
— Interest income —FIBHA (582) (233)
— Interest expense —FIEEH 11,140 11,098
Changes in working capital: LEEEH
— Inventories &5 (28,015) 44,091
— Trade and bills receivables, BRI R ERER -
other receivables, prepayments and deposits Hi g - BRkRE (30,640) 29,524
— Trade and bills payables, other payables and —BIRNFRENER - \/ﬁﬂ
deposits received and accruals ENFREEWTE KBRER 26,283 2,537
Cash generated from operations REFBEE RS 30,828 78,776
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30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of property,

plant and equipment comprise:

30

GERERERMA)

b) HEEEREZEEXA  HEYFE
B RBEH IR

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR

Net book amount (Note 15) BREDFE (MEE15) 223 5

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERSREZ

plant and equipment (Note 8) (B18), /W (fH:Es) (123) 165
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE - BERREFER

plant and equipment 100 170

(c)  For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

© BEEREEREXNE  HERH

equivalents include the following: T EFEARLTER -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$000
TR THT
Cash and bank balances (Note 24) Re RFITRA (M 24) 105,947 73821
Bank overdrafts (Note 28) RITHEX (MEE28) (9,258) (10,155)
96,689 63,666

(d)  Non-cash transactions

Included in additions of property, plant and equipment for the year is

an amount of HK$907,000 (2016: Nil) which represents provision of

reinstatement costs for the factory premises (Note 15).
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31 COMMITMENTS 31 ARIE
(a)  Capital commitments (a) BARE
At 30th June 2017, the Group had the following capital commitments for RZFE—+tFA=+AH " F£5H
addition of property, plant and equipment: BBENE  BERREZEREE
mr

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Contracted but not provided for BROBRER 3,187 01

(b)  Commitment under operating leases (b) HEHERE
As at 30th June 2017, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease RZZ—+FA=1H ' A5E
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and AR TSR B L Rig
buildings as follows: FZAUHHELEHE 2 AKKD
MERR :

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FET

Not later than one year —FR 4,946 4326

Later than one year and not later than five years —FREMERAF 10,360 5,529

15,306 9,855

Note: Bzt -

On 15th June 2017, the Group entered into a non-cancellable operating lease agreement RZBE—+EA+HA  AEER—
with an agent of the local PRC government authority to lease an industrial building premise TEAEZEYE—DEM T BFR
for 5 years with a minimum lease payment of RMB8.5 per square meter. During the non- EUBRE-ARBAFE 2P HHL
cancellable lease period, the Group commits an annual tax payment of RMB3,000,000, BHESN  ZEHELATIEHFXA
including the corporate income tax and value added tax, from its business operation in the REQ5T e AR BT EHREA -
region to the local PRC government authority. Any fall short on the committed tax payment AEBEZERER IR ZBELEM
would be paid in form of cash to the agent of the local PRC government authority. The ZHB A RNEAEEZREARK
above lease commitments only include commitments for basic rentals, and do not include 3,000,000 TZ RIB(BECEMER L
commitments for additional rentals payable, if any, when future tax payment short fall a pre- BER) o FRBEBZAERIBEIA
determined level as it is not possible to determine in advance the amount of such additional BeF ARz EM A BTREEES
rentals. ffo bl 7 BEFRERBEEREEHE

£ YA ERERRBERERRKT
ZRIMNENBEARE(INE)  ALER
MEESBRERLMEE -
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The remaining
46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares of Good Benefit

Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the Company.

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group and
details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated

financial statements.

In addition to those disclosed in Note |4 to the consolidated financial statements,

the following transactions were carried out with related parties:

32

BREALRS

AREE A Good Benefit Limited (R BE
TREHMKI AR TS HEEX
DRRAIBAZATZH=lE HH2zH
AT AEERERREZREA ° Good
Benefit Limited BE EAE D REHRALD
AZHBNEEERRA

ARRFBESHUREATEBCEE

TEAE EFAFMHERGAMBER
RUTFE 14885 -

R B BRI AT 14) RS - &2
BEATETNRIZME :

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Operating lease rentals paid to related parties: XNTEMEATHERS
— Build Fair Limited (Note i) —=BARAT (FED) 948 158
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited (Note ii)  — A= BREEAR A F
GEIO) 557 52
1,505 210

Notes:

(i) Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr HUI Sai Chung, a Director of the
Company.

(if) Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr HUI
Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company.

Operating lease rentals paid to related parties are on mutually agreed basis.
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34

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2017:

33 BRAERKRAT

EERARRBZHLIERA B A Good
Benefit Limited (ER /B4R RES M

AV A/NCI

34 FEMEAQT

RZZE—+FXA=TH KAAZE

EMBARMT :
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name SMEY RS BERTREZ Principal activites ~ RNATEFAZ
#8 R & AR RAE/EREE IREYK BERRFEIL
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited EBERRES 1003 7T REER
(Note b) (FfzFb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$93,200000  Manufacture and sale of colorants 100
Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000/ 7T and compounded plastic resins
SREBBRE enterprise BEREEECE K
AR & EEANRBE
*HEBELE
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited oy ordinary shares of colorants and compounded
AEIXERAT HK$ ! each plastic resins
500,000 & A BELBREERHR
B BT EEA NN
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture of 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited BB ordinary shares of engineering plastic
RETRREHARRAR HK$ I each products
2,000,000 & % BETR
B IBT PRBEM

Annual Report % £ # & 2016/2017 | 163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34 TEWBLF (A

Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name B TR <y 5ot ERITRHAR Principal activites ~ ADQFHFEZ
#8 RHEAER BRAE/ERES IREK BERFEIL
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited BE ordinary shares of property holding
BRABBRHARAT HK$ I each RAERR
1,000 & 3@ RAEME
B BT
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ | each (note c)
500,000 R
EERER BT
(Fff&Ec)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) A ordinary shares of BEEZBRH
Limited HK$ | each
BREBBRM(ER) 500,000 %@
BRA SR IBT
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 87T colorants and compounded

HEREERRH enterprise
BRAF e
*EEELR

164 | AnnualReport % & # & 2016/2017

plastic resins
RERHERBH
REA=E Rl



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34 TEWBLF (A

Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name ML R EEE Principal activites ~ AATEFEHZ
=L R+ ENER BRAEERES IREK BERREXEIL
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 10,500,000 % 7T colorants and compounded
BEEREBRREM enterprise plastic resins
ARAF P BENHEEBT
*INEBALE K& R AR
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
REEZERLA A ordinary shares of plastic products
HK$! each RER
5,000 & @K HEBBEM
BRIAT
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC US$200,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastics (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd. ~ * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T plastic products
RETREER enterprise EETRVBER
(EB)BRAR 5
*SNEBELRE
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture of engineering 762
Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.  * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 % 7T plastic products
RITRRER(LE) enterprise BETREBEM
AR 5
*ONEEERE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing The PRC US$ 100,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 100,000 € 7T compounded plastic resins
BEERERE enterprise BEEGH
BRAF FE REEA MK
*SMEBELE
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMBLE ()

Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name B TR <y 5ot ERITRHAR Principal activites ~ ADQFHFEZ
#8 RHEAER BRAE/ERES IREK BERFEIL
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Hong Kong 1,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
(Hong Kong) Limited BE ordinary shares of plastic products
BRATRER(EA) HK$ I each EETREBER
BRAT 1,000,000 & i
B BT
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong The PRC US$1,200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 1,200,000 % 7T colorants and compounded
EPIRETERBRE enterprise plastic resins
BRAF I RENHEEBHR
*INEBELER EEAMENE
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing The PRC RMB 10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R#& BEBRBRE
BMMREEE 5 enterprise
BRAF B
*SNEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T EEBRBEM
LARBEER enterprise
FHEEFERAF 3
*SNEBEALE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Hong Kong 10,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Company Limited BE ordinary shares of biodegradable plastic
RERREHBRAR] HK$ | each materials
10,000 & 1AAX RERHE
SR BT BRBEER
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SRR

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMEAE ()

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/

registered capital

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name B R e BRITRHRE Principal activites ~ ADQEHFEZ
a5 R EAER BRAE/ERES IEXY BRREXESH
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastics (Dongguan) Co,, Ltd.  * wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 /7T plastic products
REHTITRBH enterprise BETREBEM
ZE1 N &
*INEBELE
Shanghai Coltec Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T compounded plastic resins
LEEEY enterprise BEEGRHK
BHARAH i EBaMiEE
*INEBELE
Dongguan Coltec Plastic The PRC HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 87T compounded plastic resins
REEZER enterprise BEEGRHR
BHARAH I Rl
*HEBELF
NHH Worldwide Logistics Hong Kong 1,000,000 Logistics Service 739
Limited N ordinary shares of W AR
RERKYRARRAR HK$ I each
1,000,000 & &A%
FRIET
Tianjin Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 3% 7T BEEZBRE
RERE R enterprise
HEARLA o
*ONEBERE
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMBLE ()

Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name B TR <y 5ot ERITRHAR Principal activites ~ ADQFHFEZ
#8 RHEAER BRAE/ERES IREK BERFEIL
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Investment holding 100
(previously known as BE ordinary shares of REZR
Letibe Limited) HK$! each
BETREABRAR 10,000 & 3EAX
(F1% : RATBARAE) R IBT
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ The PRC RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 AR #& BEEZBRH
BN ETEB R enterprise
AR 5
*INEBELER
Chongging Ngai Hing The PRC RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Hong Plastic Materials Ltd.  * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R#& BEBRBRE

BEMBRATEBRH enterprise
BRAF P E
*SNEBELE
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

@

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability companies. All

subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by the
Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
(“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or surplus assets of
NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or vote at any general

meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the holders of
the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an aggregate cash consideration

of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

In order to simplify the group structure of Engineering plastics segment in Shanghai,
during the year ended 30th June 2016, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (“"EP(SH)") ceased its business operation and becomes inactive. Accordingly, all of its
distributable profits had been distributed and remitted to its immediate holding company,
NHEPML, and thus, PRC withholding tax on dividend distribution of HK$219,000 was

incurred accordingly.

SRR

34 TEWBLF (A

Bt et

(@

FAREE R R4 B i SR AL
ZHBRRHREREMERR < AR
REKLHBRRARIIEEE R
)

FiA L5z £ Z 1B 2 RIBR Ngai Hing
(International) Company Limited RZR 2
AEERAIN  HRARRRERE o

BEZBEMERAA(RE]ER
FRERRN ZFEABE2RREY
HEHRRBEED R TE %% KA
ZRIERMRER BACR A SR ES
%ﬁﬂh%ﬁ@ﬁ%@t&%c

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR &R E 4B TR ERTIE

ERFEAARNABREZERNDZ
TR o

Lﬁﬂﬁ%$wﬁﬂ$¢T¥F%ﬁi
RYRNERAREEEFEZER
nZ$AﬂW%“ﬁ°§$wﬁmﬁﬂ
HtMBARZHBESERBRIT
Ko

BELIREMD PR LENKER

B RBE_T—"FAA=THLF
BER: RETREBR(EE)ERAR

((RILEBNEEEHERRBES
B - AR ESRZFBERARTE
EARRS AN FHEERRARREAT
B FBEE 21900082 ER
BUHEENTERBRANEH -
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35 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 35 EFEHMBZNRS

(a)  Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (a) WENEL A
On 3lst December 2016, the Group acquired 15% of equity interest R-E-RE+-A=1H &
shareholding of NHH Biodegradable Plastics Company Limited (“NBP") at BILA 1,500 T2 KB WE R B
a consideration of HK$1,500. The Group recognised an increase in non- REMERLARERR] A
controlling interests of HK$2,118,000 and a decrease in equity attributable AZTRZBAER - AEERR
to owners of the Company of HK$2,120,000. The effect of change in the JEVE I RE I 02,118,000 7T -
ownership interest of NBP on the equity attributable to owners of the BEASRAMEENERA D
Company during the year is summarised as follows: 2,1200008 T - RERERNAE

ERENEDHFANRBRALT
FBENRZOZERRMT

2017

HK$'000

TER

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired BA R RN REE (2,118)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest XA T ISR E ()
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity BEXNNHED N ERTER (2,120)
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35 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 35

36

(Continued)

(b)  Disposal of interest in subsidiaries without loss of control

During the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group disposed of 10.1% of
effective interest in each of NHH Worldwide Logistics Limited ("NHWL")
and ILS Logistics Limited (“ILS") at a consideration of HK$120,000 and
HK$ 12 respectively. The carrying amounts of the effective interest disposed
in NHWL and ILS on the date of disposal were HK$78,000 and HK$9,000

respectively. The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests

of HK$87,000 and an increase in equity attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$207,000. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of

NHWL and ILS on the equity attributable to owners of the Company was

summarised as follows:

SRR

EFEHMRRNRS (&)

() HEREL TR (TXLPEHE)
RZZE—R"EAA=THLEEE
AEE S RILA 120,000 7T K 1278
TZRELERERENAERA
al([REDR]) KB RE R
RRBAMR)BED 2 T8—
ZERER - REYIRREEAMR
MEHEERERNHE B R
H &2 7 &78,0005% 7T K 9,000
T o AEERRIEEH SR
87,0008 BENEARMAE
KO #E 2538 71207,000 8 70 © B EY)
MRBBAMRNE EREm S
HERNGEBRALRMAENER

MEEREMT :
2016
HK$'000
THET
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests disposed of HE IR ERNREE 87
Consideration received from non-controlling interests B IR R e % (B 120
Gain on disposal within equity s PR SR 207
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36 HEEE
During the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group received a claim from a REBEZZ-—R"ERA=TRILEE"

customer in respect of the sales of alleged defective goods with claim amount
approximately RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$5,747,000). As at 30th June 2017,

the legal adviser of the Group on this claim is of the opinion that the Group has

a good case to defend. On this basis, the Directors consider that the claim will

unlikely result in any material financial impact on the Group as at 30th June 2017.

AERKE -EPRABNTARER
12 1 A B # 5,000,000 7T (% {& 5,747,000
BILNBAR -R-_ZT—+F~ A=1H
AEBNZZERMBLBRZERRA
AEETRLTE Al EFRA/R
ZEtFRACTHERREASHA
ERTREANBTE -
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FEUMBHmRMEE
37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37 2RI EGRER)
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FExT FAT
Financial assets - loans and receivables B EE-ERMERR
Trade and bills receivables B S RUGI R B E & 22 264,882 248,086
Other receivables and deposits Hiplm Rige 9,204 13,064
Restricted bank deposits RE AW RITER 24 22,989 23,256
Cash and cash equivalents Be RR1THEER 24 105,947 73,821
403,022 358,227
Financial asset - available for sale BSEE-IHHEE
Available-for-sale financial asset AEHENEEE 19 2,000 2,000
Financial liabilities - fair value through profit orloss ~ BITSBE-RAA BEABERLR
Derivative financial instruments TESMITA 23 29 584
Finandial liabilities - other financial liabilties BAE-EtHBaE, REHEKAR
at amortised cost
Trade and bills payables BHRNRRENEE 25 88,513 72,875
Other payables and deposits received HiEWR R ERET € 21,156 16,220
Bank borrowings RITHE 28 331,830 280,843
441,499 369,938
38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 38 AREANEEEBERRHEESE
OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet EESEX
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FiasE FET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ARKRE 62,711 62,711
Current assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries L CaENGIE S 108,335 101,739
Other receivables Hfth FE M R 113 284
Cash and bank balances Be RFITHER 181 107
108,629 102,130
Total assets BEE 171,340 164,841

172 | Annual Report % & # % 2016/2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RN
38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 38 FNEANEERRRRRESD A
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Balance sheet (Continued) EELAX ()
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pl T THEL
EQUITY 1%
Capital and reserves attributable AR R G RN
to the Company's equity holders Rt
Share capital R 36,920 36920
Share premium BRAHE 62,466 62,466
Other reserve Hith#tm 38 (a) 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings RE & 38 (a) 8,896 2,376
Total equity s 170,793 164,273
LIABILITIES AR
Current liabilities REAR
hewds ... BERR N - . L
Total equity and liabilities pEzRaRE 171,340 164,841
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on ARANEERBRERAEFEN_F
28th September 2017 and were signed on its behalf —tFRAZTNB#E URERES
eRE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
AR A
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EY BT EREFAEIE
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company

33 FRANEERBRRREZD @)

ik () ARTREGE

Other reserve —

contributed
surplus
(Note)
Hitf#E - Retained
BB earnings Total
(P#aE) R &R mE
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TET THERT
At Ist July 2015 RZZ-AF+A-A 62,511 6,258 68,769
Loss for the year rEBE — (190) (190)
2014/15 final dividend paid IRZT-N/-REE
RER 2 — (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2016 RZE—RF A=TH 62,511 2,376 64,887
At Ist July 2016 RZE-—RFLA—H 62,511 2,376 64,887
Profit for the year AR5 Al — 10,212 10212
2016/17 interim dividend paid INZF-X/=%—t
EETHRE — (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2017 RZE—+FA=1H 62,511 8,896 71,407
Note; B sE -

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the consolidated
shareholders' funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at the date on which the
Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued under the

Reorganisation. At Group level the contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves

of the underlying subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders,
subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due, or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its

liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFHGHE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years are as AEERBENEAMBREEBF 2 XE  BE
follows: REBEmT

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK000  HK$000
TER TAT TAT TAT TAT

Results £
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity NARER

holders of the Company wAl/ (ER) 34,430 (26,492) 25225 3241 22,059
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BERE 953,013 847,339 959,403 953357 1,002,768
Total liabilities BERE (469,816)  (391618)  (440972)  (460037)  (504,609)
Non-controlling interests eIl g (23,065) (20,384) (21,336) 21,461) (22,419)
Capital and reserves attributable to NG EY AN

the Company's equity holders G 460,132 435337 497,095 471,859 475,740
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FRYER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT REWM=
As at 30th June 2017 and 2016, the Group had the following investment properties in RZE—+tRZT-R"E A=1+H *&E
Hong Kong and The People’s Republic of China (“PRC"): RAENREERPEARANE(THE])2&
Bx
As at 30th June 2017 R-E—tFAA=1H
Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
i i 4 Az HEEsE FREER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Floor, Factory = Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory EES ] 100%
IXREB-FE Units 1,2,3,4,5, 6,7 and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8
on | Ith Floor, Factory Unit 3 on I2th Floor and Roof 3, Hopeful
Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BE D BARMRE- 155 RAREE 10-16 5K BB EA
D2BAE 3BIE (BTR8E 8H8E - 10123
4:5 6 TRB8E IIBIRSE  NE3ERKRE 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Zhen, Industrial Medium 100%
units — PRC Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC I G 100%
TEREEMN —FE URPRERERENEHEREN c TEAE
Car park units — Hong Kong  Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo  Commercial Short 100%
BB & Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New [GES 2 H 100%
Territories, Hong Kong
BEH D HNRNRIE9- 1558 RREAT 10- 1658 BT
Bb3 - 14 R ISREEN
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614 and 1615, 16th Level, Modo Nanjing Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment - PRC Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 Nanjing Road, Nankai District, EES & 100%

BEMRAZBA—FE  Tianjin, PRC
PR B K T R B [ AR B 349 5 MODO B RIS T R A B 16
16121613 1614 1615%
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (Continued)

As at 30¢th June 2016

Description
it

FRYER

RENE &)
R-E-ANEANA=TH
Category of Group’s
Usage lease term interest

Addresses
b o

Rz HEHsE FREER

Industrial building
units — Hong Kong
IXRREEM-FE

Car park units — Hong Kong
FE &

Commercial office units
and apartment - PRC
EERAZBN—F

Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Floor, Factory
Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory
Units 1, 2, 3,4, 5, 6,7 and 8 on 10th Floor, Factory Units | and 8
on | Ith Floor, Factory Unit 3 on I2th Floor and Roof 3, Hopeful
Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEMADBARMREE - 15 RAREE 10-165F BB £
D2B4E 3B2E 6BTRBE 8HE8E 108123
4°5 6 TR8E IBIRSE  NEIERKRA 3N

Car Parks 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan
Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB AP BNRNRIE-155 RAREE 10- 1657 BEIE
B 14K 15 REEAL

Units 1612, 1613, 1614 and 1615, 16th Level, Modo Nanjing
Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 Nanjing Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin, PRC

ot K 22 71 7 I P AR B 349 S MODO B R 3T RS KJE 16
16121613 1614K% 1615F

Commercial Medium 100%
GES F HA 100%
Commercial Short 100%
GES f2HA 100%
Commercial Medium 100%
GES F 5 100%
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Company Directory
AEER

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755  Zip: 523940
Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756
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Guangzhou Office:

A1806, Center Plaza,

No. 161 Linhe Road West,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226  Zip : 510620
Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, I 6th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghali,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 21 6440 0997  Zip: 200235
Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0977

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.

Qingpu Industrial Zone,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333 Zip: 201707
Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 532 8727 3100  Zip: 266300
Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110
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Company Directory

AT)ER

Chengdu Office: REM R

Room 2919, Building B, hEE AR AME

Longhu 3000 Constellations, 79114 B & i

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3, ERIE=RR

Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, EH=TER

The People’s Republic of China BAE2919 %%

Tel: +86 (0) 28 8328 5026  Zip: 610051 T:E 1 +86(0) 28 8328 5026 EBARSE ¢ 610051
Fax +86 (0) 28 8328 5126 fEE : +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Xiamen Factory: B

No.|6-4 Putou Road, hEARANE

Haicang District, BEEEMT

Xiamen City, Fujian Province, BER

The People’s Republic of China IR 16455

Tel: +86 (0) 592 6093211 Zip: 361027 TiE 1 +86(0) 5926093211 BBEUARSE : 361027
Fax: +86 (0) 592 6093600 fBE : +86 (0) 592 6093600

Tianjin Office: XERER

Room 1616, No. 349 Nanjing Road, hEE AR

Nankai District, Tianjin, RETEFHE

The People’s Republic of China HRE349F 1616 %

Tel: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026  Zip: 300073 B0 +86 (0) 2287528026 EEARSR : 300073
Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109 fBE : +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chongging Office: ERMER

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center, hE AR AME

No. 28 Minquan Road BEMmATE

Yuzhong District, Chongging, RAEH 28 5%

The People’s Republic of China ENBEREEF 03601 E

Tel: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020  Zip: 400010 B3 +86 (0) 2363820020 EBEARSE : 400010
Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090 fEE : +86 (0) 23 6382 0090
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Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
X EIITHERRZXF
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